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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 5 i

Revenue (HK$'000) Wz (F%E7T)
a. Construction a. B 822,377 704,126 348,300 640,112 926,844
b. Property leasing b. MEHEE 145,202 142,048 135,763 133,588 131,218

c. Property development C.MEER - - - - -

967,579 846,174 484,063 773,700 1,058,062
Segment profit (HK$'000) 2 ZB5&EF (T8 7T)
a. Construction a. B 72,693 66,142 70,326 35,344 17,264
b. Property leasing b. MEHEE 89,824 92,264 90,285 93,749 94,212
c. Property development C.MEER (18) (35) - - -
162,499 158,371 160,611 129,093 111,476
Adjusted profit for the &R AFEEEF
year (Note (i) (HK$'000) (et () (F#7T) 116,734 116,090 107,544 81,586 58,936
Current ratio Bt = 1.07 1.19 1.84 1.55 0.41
Gearing ratio (Note (ij)) BERE B R (M) 43.3% 50.7% 45.1% 64.8% 61.2%
Net gearing ratio FEXRABLE
(Note (iif) (B & (i) 36.3% 42.3% 31.2% 57.1% 50.7%
Return on equity &N EIE] 16.2% 15.5% 12.2% 12.2% 9.1%
Note: e
() Adjusted profit for the year is calculated based on the profit for the year () A€ FHEE AR SR T ARRA A R0 A W MR 12 4
and adjusted by excluding the changes in fair value of investment MRAFHEEBHES
properties
(i)  Gearing ratio represents total interest-bearing borrowings divided by () EARBMEL RIS EFER AR R 25 Bk N
shareholders’ equity and multiplied by 100% 100%
(i)  Net gearing ratio represents total interest-bearing borrowings net of cash (i) % fﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%?m‘?fﬁé RBITFERE 2 B3
and bank balances, divided by shareholders' equity and multiplied by 100% BRI DAR R A 25 B R A 100%

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—EB-RE —T—HF —T-NF —T-=ZF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT FHT FET FAT FAT
RESULTS 0
For the year ended HE=ZA=1+—H
31 March IFFE
Revenue W28 967,579 846,174 484,063 773,700 1,058,062
Profit before taxation B 738 AT s 1) 427,110 352,149 463,402 165,959 113,429
Profit for the year REEHF 401,929 327,813 438,482 148,981 101,936
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE
AS at 31 March R=H=4+—H
Total assets BEE 3,829,800 3,482,638 2,801,509 2292427 2,211,858
Total liabilities BmatE 1,356,073 1,362,729 981,080 1,002,023 1,054,466
Total equity R 2,473,727 2,119,909 1,820,429 1,290,404 1,157,392
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
X A

Chan Hung Ming

PR 7L BA
Chairman

FE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016 (“FY 2016").

RESULTS

The Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company for FY 2016
amounted to approximately HK$401.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$74.1 million or 22.6% over approximately HK$327.8
million for the corresponding year ended 31 March 2015 (“FY 2015").
Earnings per share were HK68.5 cents. By excluding the change in fair
value of investment properties, the Group recorded net profit for FY
2016 of approximately HK$116.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.6 million or 0.55% over approximately HK$116.1
million for FY 2015.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0 cents
per share to shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 5 August
2016. Subject to approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the dividend warrants will be
dispatched to Shareholders on or before 16 August 2016. Together with
the interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per share that have been already
paid, the total dividend for FY 2016 will amount to HK8.0 cents per share,
representing a payout ratio of approximately 38.4% (based on the total
dividend for FY 2016 and the Group's profit for the year excluding the
increase in fair value of investment properties).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
W

BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

To respond the support of the Shareholders, the Company had issued
bonus shares on 12 August 2015 and 17 December 2015 on the basis of
one bonus share for every ten then existing shares held by
Shareholders.

The Board now proposes a bonus issue of shares on the basis of one
bonus share for every ten existing shares held by Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 5 August
2016. The relevant resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, and if passed and upon The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting the
listing of and permission to deal in such new shares, shares certificates
of the bonus shares will be dispatched to Shareholders on or before 16
August 2016

The bonus shares will rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares in issue from the date of issue except that they will not rank for
the final dividend for the FY 2016. No fractional shares arising from the
bonus issue shall be allotted and fractional entitlements will be
aggregated and sold at such time or times as the Directors shall think fit
for the benefit of the Company.

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Group has a long history in the construction sector as a main
contractor in residential and commercial property development projects
for prominent local developers since 1997. With an aim of broadening
the income stream from a project-based nature to a more balanced one
and procuring a higher gross profit margin, the Group tapped into the
data centre premises leasing business in 2007. During the past two
years, the Group also had actively participated in the tenders of sales of
Hong Kong Government land with an aim to engage in the property
development business.

The Group has established solid relationships with prominent local
developers, providing them with building construction services,
alterations, renovation and fitting-out works. During FY 2016, the
Group had secured two new construction contracts of proposed
residential development in Kau To Shan, Shatin and Kai Tak,
Kowloon with an aggregate contract sum of approximately
HK$2.16 billion. As at 31 March 2016, the Group's gross contract
value on hand was approximately HK$2.85 billion.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
W

The Group's first high-tier data centre that is located in Tsuen Wan,
namely iTech Tower, has been fully leased out since 2011.

The Group's second high-tier data centre, namely iTech Tower 2, is
situated in Kwai Chung which provides raised floor area of
approximately 45,000 square feet. The occupation permit of the
premise had been issued by the Buildings Department of the Hong
Kong Government. Same as iTech Tower, iTech Tower 2 is also
designed and built for the requirement of high-tier data centre and
is capable of customization based on customer’s specific
requirement. Currently we are responding to specification request
from potential customers and negotiating with them the detail
terms of the lease agreement.

On 31 May 2016, the Group had successfully tendered for a land
situated at Tsing Yi Town Lot No. 190, Sai Shan Road, Tsing Yi, New
Territories from the Hong Kong Government at a premium of
HK$938.88 million. The land parcel will be used for residential and
commercial development and the total investment cost is
estimated to be HK$3.30 billion.

OUTLOOK

The construction industry is expected to remain steady in the medium
term amid the increase in supply of land by the Hong Kong Government
and rollout of new development districts such as Kai Tak and West
Kowloon. Yet, following the delay in the government-led infrastructure
projects, recent property market consolidation, together with slowdown
of Mainland China’s economy, supply of the workforce and materials for
construction industry are forecasted to rise. This will drive down the
construction cost but the gross margin of construction contracts may
simultaneously be eroded. Although this does not pose any adverse
effect on the Group's existing order books as the contract sums have
been confirmed, the Group will pursue prudently when bidding the
upcoming construction contracts to ensure the construction business of
the Group maintaining a reasonable gross margin.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
W

On the other side, the current sluggish economy in Hong Kong and
interest rate hike concern would provide opportunity for the Group to
acquire land from the Hong Kong Government at a more reasonable
price. The recent acquisition of the government land in Sai Shan Road,
Tsing Vi signifies the first property project undertaken by the Group and
the first step to diversify the Group’s business into the property
development business by leveraging its expertise in the building
construction and property development knowledge. We believe that
property development activity will bring the Group to an enhanced
revenue generating portfolio. As a result, the Group will keep on
participating in the tendering of sales of Hong Kong Government land
either on our own or through joint venture with other property
developers.

As a major international financial centre and proximity to Mainland
China, the Hong Kong data centre operators have traditionally enjoyed
tremendous businesses from the multinational financial, securities and
telecommunication conglomerate. The recent demand for high-tier data
centre is driven by cloud, digital media and content. On the other hand,
the challenges we will encounter mainly arise from the increase in
supply of data centre space in the coming two years, in Tseung Kwan O
particularly, which will take time to be absorbed by the new customer
demand. The Group will closely monitor the market condition and
cautiously consider the development of the third high-tier data centre
either in Hong Kong or Mainland China.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the Board
for its brilliant leadership, to the shareholders for their strong support,
and to the community for their enthusiastic assistance, and last but not
least, to our staff for their dedicated efforts.

Chan Hung Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PHLJE i B g

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's total revenue for FY 2016 was approximately HK$967.6
million, representing an increase of approximately 14.3% or HK$121.4
million from approximately HK$846.2 million for FY 2015. Revenue from
the construction business increased by approximately 16.8% or
HK$118.3 million, from approximately HK$704.1 million for FY 2015 to
approximately HK$822.4 million for FY 2016. Revenue from the data
centre premises leasing business slightly increased by approximately
1.7% or HK$2.4 million, from approximately HK$141.9 million for FY 2015
to approximately HK$144.3 million for FY 2016.

The increase in revenue was mainly contributed to a construction
project at Tseung Kwan O for which construction work commenced in
August 2014 and was in full swing during FY 2016.

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately 1.4% or HK$2.4
million, from approximately HK$166.8 million for FY 2015 to
approximately HK$169.2 million for FY 2016. Despite the increase in
gross profit, the profit margin has declined due to decrease in the
proportion of revenue recognised during the year from a construction
project which had relatively higher gross profit margin as compared with
the corresponding period of last year, and increase of operating cost
following the commencement of operation of iTech Tower 2 since
December 2015.

The Group recorded fair value gains on investment properties of
approximately HK$285.2 million during FY 2016 as compared to the fair
value gains of approximately HK$211.7 million for the corresponding
period last year. The revaluation gains primarily arise from iTech Tower 2
based on its state of completion.

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately HK$401.9 million for FY
2016, an increase of approximately 22.6% or HK$74.1 million when
compared with that of approximately HK$327.8 million for FY 2015.
Excluding the increase in fair value of investment properties, the Group
recorded an adjusted profit for the year of approximately HK$116.7
million in FY 2016, representing an increase of approximately 0.55% or
HK$0.6 million when compared to an adjusted profit for the year of
approximately HK$116.1 million in FY 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o BHLJE i B g

FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group financed its operations and capital expenditure with internal
resources and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s total cash and bank balances were
approximately HK$173.2 million (31 March 2015: approximately HK$177.5
million), most of which are held in Hong Kong dollars. The current ratio
(defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was
1.07 times (31 March 2015: 1.19 times). The gearing ratio (defined as
total interest-bearing borrowings divided by shareholders’ equity) of the
Group was approximately 43.3% (31 March 2015: approximately 50.7%).

Interest on bank loans is charged at floating rates. The Group had in
place treasury policy by which the exposure to floating interest rate risk
is mitigated by the use of interest rate swaps. The swaps had fixed swap
rates ranging from 0.89% to 1.8% per annum.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associated
companies by the Company during FY 2016.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in Note 35(b) to the financial statements, the Group
does not have any concrete plan for material investment or capital
assets in the coming year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total of 167 (31 March 2015: 166)
employees. The total remuneration cost incurred by the Group for the
FY 2016 was approximately HK$81.3 million (2015: approximately
HK$71.6 million).

The remuneration policy and packages of the Group’'s employees are
periodically reviewed by making reference to the prevailing market
conditions. The components of remuneration packages consisted of
basic salary, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits and contributions to
mandatory provident funds, as well as discretionary bonuses which are
determined according to individual performance of employees.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,070.3
million as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: approximately HK$1,074.9
million). Bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,064.3 million are
secured by the Group’s assets with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$3,515.0 million as at 31 March 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PHLJE i B g

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk because
almost all the Group’s transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the Group had
no other capital commitments as at 31 March 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, the Group had
no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2016.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the event after the reporting period are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there was no significant events have taken
place subsequent to 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HERFHRE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of building
construction, property leasing and property development. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during FY 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and the outlook of
the Group’s business are provided in the Chairman’s Statement section
from page 6 to 9 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in the Chairman
Statement, including the financial risks mentioned in note 31 to the
financial statements. Particulars of the events that have occurred since
the end of the reporting period are provided in note 35 to the financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
Highlights and Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this
annual report. All the above sections form part of this report.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognise that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development to the Group. The Group is
committed to building a close and caring relationship with its employees
and business partners, and improves the quality of services and
products to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most vital and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group ensures all staffs are reasonably remunerated, regular
seminars on safety for specific type of works and activities and safety
induction training are provided for all employees as well as the
subcontractors’ employees.

The Group stays connected with its customers and has ongoing
communication with them through various channels such as physical
meetings, telephone and electronic mail communication to obtain their
feedback and suggestions.

The Group establishes long-term business relationship with the
subcontractors. Through the past dealings with the subcontractors, the
Group has acquired sufficient appreciation of their expertise and
strengths so that it would enable us to maintain our quality standards.
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The Group also places effort to build up and maintain good relationship
with various commercial banks as the Group’s businesses are capital
intensive and require on-going funding to maintain continuous growth.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company endeavours to protect the environment in which it
operates its business. The Group’s construction segment has established
an environmental management system and was certified by Certification
Asia (HK) Limited to be in compliance with the requirements of ISO
14001:2004.

During FY 2016, there was no material non-compliance in relation to air
pollution, noise control, disposal and emission of construction wastes.
Green office practices are also encouraged in the operation of the
Group's businesses, such as double-sided printing and copying, setting
up recycling bins, sending and presenting corporate documents or
information to the members of the Board in electronic format, and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lighting and electrical
appliances.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND REGULATION

During FY2016, no material non-compliance of the laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company was noted. In addition,
discussion on the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code is included in the Corporate Governance Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for FY 2016 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 47 of this annual report. An interim
dividend of HK4.0 cents per share was paid on 17 December 2015. The
Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK 4.0 cents per
share to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 5 August 2016.

BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

On 2 June 2015, the Board proposed a bonus issue on the basis of one
bonus share for every ten shares then held. The bonus issue was
approved by Shareholders on 23 July 2015 and 48,478,326 bonus shares
were issued on 12 August 2015.

On 2 November 2015, the Board proposed a bonus issue on the basis of
one bonus share for every ten shares then held. The bonus issue was
approved by Shareholders on 17 November 2015 and 53,326,158 bonus
shares were issued on 17 December 2015.
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Details, including the reason of the above two bonus issue of shares are
set out in the circular dated 23 June 2015 and 2 November 2015
respectively.

The Board now proposes a bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share
for every ten shares held to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 5 August 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine entitlement of Shareholders to the right to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 26 July 2016 to 28 July
2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. All transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrars
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 25 July 2016.

In order to determine Shareholders who qualify for the proposed final
dividend and bonus issue of shares, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 3 August 2016 to 5 August 2016, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All
transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrars and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 August 2016.

SHARE ISSUED

During the year, the Company issued 101,804,484 bonus shares in
aggregate without consideration on the basis of one bonus share for
every ten shares then held.

Details of the shares issued by the Company and the movement in the
share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 26 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 51 of this annual report and in note 27(b) to the financial
statements, respectively.
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DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$3,000.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group is set out on
page 5 of this annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets (including investment properties
and property, plant and equipment) during the year are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS
Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 March 2016 are set out in
note 23 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
The amount of interest capitalised by the Group during the year is set
out in note 10(a) to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of revenue of the Group attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers in aggregate are 51.3% and
90.7% respectively.

The percentage of purchases of the Group attributable to the largest
supplier and the five largest suppliers in aggregate are 9.9% and 32.6%
respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of
Company’s issued shares) had an interest in the five major suppliers or
customers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association (the “Articles”) and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:
Executive Directors Independent
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tsui Ka Wah

Mr. Kan Yau Wo

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill

Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny

Mr. Chan Hung Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Chi Wah

Mr. Yuen Ying Wai

Mr. Kwan Wing Wo

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. It is proposed that Mr. Kwan Wing Wo, Mr.
Kan Yau Wo and Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny shall retire from office by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 27 to 32 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from 9
August 2013 (the “Listing Date") unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either the Director or the Company.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years with effect
from the Listing Date unless terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the independent non-executive
Director or the Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors of the Company. The permitted
indemnity provisions are provided for in the Articles and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may
be brought against such Directors.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Note:

1. The Letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2. Mr. Chan Hung Ming holds 100% of the issued share capital of Chan HM
Company Limited, which owns 395,307,000 shares out of the issued share
capital of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Chan Hung Ming is deemed to have
the same interest in the Company.

3. Mr. Lau Chi Wah holds 100% of the issued share capital of Lau CW
Company Limited, which owns 43,923,000 shares out of the issued share
capital of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lau Chi Wah is deemed to have the
same interest in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company has or is deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as at 31 March 2016.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
persons/entity (not being the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations which were required to be notified to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Note:

1. The Letter “L" denotes the person’s/entity’s long position in the shares of
the Company or the relevant Group member.

2. Ms. Cheung Shuk Fong, the spouse of Mr. Lau Chi Wah, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Lau's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the issued shares of the
Company as at 31 March 2016 which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in the section headed “Interests and Short
Positions of Directors and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
or Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” above,
at no time during FY 2016 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any holding company or any subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company, a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save for their respective interests in the Group, none of the Directors
was interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete
with the businesses of the Group for FY 2016.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Rental paid to: YRS T
Perfect Top Development Limited

Gain Glory Development Limited

Perfect Top Development Limited
Gain Glory Development Limited
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The rental expenses related to leasing of certain office units. They were
charged according to the tenancy agreements dated 17 April 2013
("Agreements”) signed between the Group and two related companies,
namely Grand Tech Enterprise Company limited (“GTE”) and Grand Regal
Holdings limited (“GRH"). On 21 November 2013, GTE and GRH entered
into assignment agreements with another two related companies,
namely Perfect Top Development Limited (“Perfect Top”) and Gain Glory
Development Limited (“Gain Glory”) respectively, pursuant to which the
ownership of these office units were transferred from GTE and GRH to
Perfect Top and Gain Glory respectively, and Perfect Top and Gain Glory
agreed to assume all rights and obligations under the Agreements.

On 17 September 2015, the Group served a notice to Perfect Top and
Gain Glory to terminate the Agreements with effect from 21 September
2015. Other than the rental payable up to 20 September 2015, neither
party is required to pay any penalty or compensation to the other party
in respect of the termination of the Agreements.

GTE, GRH, Perfect Top and Gain Glory are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Grand Ming Holdings Limited, which is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr.
Chan Hung Ming, a controlling shareholder and an executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, an executive Director of the
Company, respectively.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company had reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into: (a) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company; (b) either on normal commercial terms or,
on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements other than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Company in this
annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed above and in
note 34(a) to the financial statements, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or any of its
fellow subsidiaries was a party during FY 2016.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed above, none of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries had entered into any contract of
significance or contract of significance for provision of services with the
Company’s controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition in respect of the Controlling Shareholder was
entered into on 23 July 2013 (the “"Deed of Non-Competition”). The
Controlling Shareholder has confirmed to the Company of its compliance
with the Deed of Non-Competition provided to the Company during the
year.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the Controlling Shareholder of the Company has complied with the
Deed of Non-Competition which has been enforced by the Company in
accordance with its terms, and that there was no New Opportunity (as
defined in the Prospectus headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Non-compete undertakings”) referred by the Controlling
Shareholder to the Company as provided under the Deed of Non-
Competition.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustees. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at rates specified in the rules. During FY 2016, the Group
contributed approximately HK$2.3 million to the aforesaid scheme.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 23 July
2013 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel, to provide additional incentives to
them to promote the long term success of the Group. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board may, at its own discretion, grant options to any full-
time or part-time employee, executives, officers, directors (including
executive, non-executive, and independent non-executive Directors),
consultants, advisors, suppliers, customers, agents and other persons
whom the Board determines have or will have contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue upon the Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares (the
“Scheme Limit”). Subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting,
the Board may (i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of the approval by the Shareholders in general
meeting; and/or (ii) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit to eligible
participants specifically identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No options
shall be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the
Scheme) if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options is subject
to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such eligible
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing from the Adoption Date.

A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an
option. Pursuant to the Scheme, the participants may subscribe for the
shares of the Company on exercise of an option at the price determined
by the Board provided that it shall be at least the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

No options had been granted under the Scheme during the year.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan” or
the "SAP”) on the Adoption Date. Subject to and in accordance with the
rules of the SAP, the Board may make an award of shares to certain
classes of eligible participants as specified in the SAP, as determined by
the Board from time to time on the basis of the Board’s opinion as to the
proposed awardee’s contribution and/or future contribution to the
development and growth of the Group. The SAP shall be subject to the
administration of the Board, or such committee or such sub-committee
or person(s) delegated with the power and authority by the Board to
administer the SAP. The shares and other trust fund for the
implementation of the Share Award Plan shall be administered by a
trustee or trustees (the “Share Award Plan trustee”, or the “SAP trustee”)
to be appointed by the Company. Under the SAP, the Board shall
determine the eligibility of the eligible participants and the number of
shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and notify the SAP trustee
of the making of awards. The SAP trustee shall then set aside the
appropriate number of the Awarded Shares pending the transfer and
vest to the relevant participants out of a pool of shares which shall
comprise of, among others, shares either (1) (i) transferred to it from any
person (other than the Group) by way of gift; or (i) purchased by the SAP
trustee out of the funds received by the SAP trustee by way of gift or for
nominal consideration; (2) subscribed for or purchased by the Share
Award Plan trustee out of the funds allocated by the Board out of the
Group’s resources (“Group’s Contribution”), subject to the terms and
conditions of the rules of the SAP; (3) purchased by the SAP trustee by
utilizing any surplus gift contribution, or the net proceeds of the sale of
the relevant nil-paid rights, options or warrants allocated to it in respect
of the Awarded Shares; (4) which remain unvested and revert to the SAP
trustee in accordance with the rules of the SAP.
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The SAP trustee may purchase shares on the Stock Exchange at the
prevailing market prices or off the market. In respect of off-market
transactions, purchases shall not be made with any connected person,
nor shall the purchase price be higher than the lower of (1) the closing
market price on the date of such purchase, and (2) the average closing
market price for the five preceding trading days on which Shares of the
Company were traded on the Stock Exchange. At the beginning of each
financial year of the Group, the Board shall determine the maximum
amount of the Group's Contribution to be allocated to the SAP trustee (or
via a special purpose vehicle which may be established by the SAP
trustee subject to the provisions of the trust deed to be executed by the
Company as settlor and the SAP trustee as trustee, shortly as “Share
Award Plan SPV") during such financial year, provided that the maximum
numbers of Shares which may be awarded for each financial year under
the SAP shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue at
the beginning of such financial year. The Share Award Plan trustee may
also subscribe for new Shares at par or at such other subscription price
as instructed by the Board out of the Group's Contribution if the Board
considers it appropriate to do so. Prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders is not required for the Directors to allot and issue new
Shares under the SAP to the SAP trustee, provided that the Directors
have sufficient unissued shares within the general mandate on hand
subject to certain limitations under the SAP. The Company shall comply
with the relevant listing Rules when granting the Awarded Shares. the
legal and beneficial ownership of the relevant awarded Shares shall be
vested in the relevant selected participant within 10 business days after
the latest of (1) the date specified in the notice of the award given by the
Board to the SAP trustee; and (2) where applicable, the date on which
the condition(s) or performance target(s) (if any) to be attained by such
selected participant as specified in the related notice of award have
been attained and notified to the Share Award Plan trustee by the Board
in writing. Neither the SAP trustee nor Share Award Plan SPV (if so
established and subsisting) shall exercise the voting rights in respect of
the Shares held under trust. The Share Award Plan will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.

No Shares had been awarded under the Share Award Plan during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's listed securities during FY 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied with all the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules for the FY 2016. Details are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 33 to 44.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

During the year, KPMG resigned as auditors of the Company and BDO
Limited were appointed by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy so
arising. There have been no other changes of auditors in the past three
years.

BDO Limited retire and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment, and

a resolution to this effect shall be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Hung Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 June 2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Hung Ming, aged 62, is our chairman and executive Director.
He is also our Controlling Shareholder. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Chan is
interested in 395,307,000 Shares, representing 67.39% of the number of
the issued shares of the Company, as at the date of this annual report.

Mr. Chan is a co-founder of our Group and has participated in the
management of our Group since 1995. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall strategic development and direction of the
business development of our Group. He has accumulated over 42 years'
experience in construction and property development field and 8 years’
experience data centre premises leasing business.

Mr. Chan holds a Higher Certificate in Building Technology from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, aged 51, is our executive Director and chief
executive officer. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Lau is interested in
43,923,000 Shares, representing 7.49% of the number of the issued
shares of the Company, as at the date of this annual report.

Mr. Lau is a co-founder of our Group and has participated in the
management of our Group since 1995. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall strategic planning of our Group and overseeing
the business development, administrative and compliance matters of
our Group. He had over 22 years of audit, accounting and finance
experience.

Mr. Lau holds a Honour Diploma in Accountancy from the Lingnan
College (now known as the Lingnan University) and Master's Degree in
Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Yuen Ying Wai, aged 53, is our executive Director. Mr. Yuen joined
our Group in 2001 and has participated in the management of our Group
since 2007.

Mr. Yuen is responsible for the overall management of the construction
and data centre premises leasing business. He has over 32 years’
experience in quantity surveying and construction project management
and 8 years' experience in the construction of high tier data centre and
the related leasing matters.

Mr. Yuen holds a Certificate in Civil Engineering Studies from the Hong
Kong Vocational Training Council, a National Certificate in Civil
Engineering Studies from Business & Technician Education Council, a
Higher Certificate in Civil Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University), and a Diploma in
Surveying from the College of Estate Management in the United
Kingdom. He is a member of both the Society of Surveying Technician
and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Yuen did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yuen is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

Mr. Kwan Wing Wo, aged 48, is our executive Director and chief
financial officer. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in 2008 and has participated
in the management of the Group since then.

Mr. Kwan is responsible for the corporate finance, accounting, taxation,
investment and administrative matters of our Group. He has over 25
years’ experience in auditing, accounting and finance field. Prior to
joining our Group in 2008, Mr. Kwan has held a management position in
a listed company in Hong Kong for 12 years and was mainly responsible
for its finance, financial reporting obligations, accounting, taxation and
administrative matters.

Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of United Kingdom and a member of the HKICPA.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Kwan did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Kwan is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, aged 63, is our independent non-executive Director
since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsui has 29 years of banking experience with the United States and
local banks, and has held various management positions in corporate,
retail and private banking. Currently he holds the position of chief
executive officer of SME Credit Company Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Oriental Explorer Holdings Limited
(stock code: 430), Multifield International Holdings Limited (stock code:
898) and Southeast Asia Properties & Finance Limited (stock code: 252)
respectively, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Tsui holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree and a Master’s Degree of
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tsui did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Tsui is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

Mr. Kan Yau Wo, aged 63, is our independent non-executive Director
since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee
and a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company.

Mr. Kan has been working with Fujitsu’s group of companies for over 30
years and was appointed as the president in Fujitsu Hong Kong Ltd. in
2007 and then the chief executive officer of Fujitsu’s South China and
Hong Kong Region. Mr. Kan retired from his position in Fujitsu’s group of
companies in 2011.

Mr. Kan graduated from University of Hull in the United Kingdom with
Bachelor of Science (First Class Honour) in Computer Studies and
Mathematics in July 1978.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Kan did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Kan is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill, aged 55, is our independent non-executive
Director since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee, and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Mok has 28 years’ experience in accounting, finance and banking in
Hong Kong and Mainland China with specific expertise in managing
financial and accounting operations, fund raising, investor relations and
executing corporate strategy. Currently he is the chief financial officer of
Fortune Oil, a company which was listed in the London Stock Exchange
and voluntarily delisted in March 2015.

Mr. Mok holds Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Washington in the United States and a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the Seattle University in the United States.
He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the HKICPA respectively.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Mok did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Mok is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny, aged 72, is our independent non-
executive Director since 23 July 2013. He is also a member of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company.

With over 20 years’ experience in the field of architecture, Mr. Lee
worked in several architect firms including as a director from 1995 to
2009. From 2009, Mr. Lee has been working for an architecture company
as a project director.

Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Architecture. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and a registered architect with Architects Registration Board
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is also an authorised person within the List of
Architects maintained by the Buildings Department.
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As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lee did not have any interests or
underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Lee is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Au-Yeung Yiu Wai, aged 58, joined our group in 1997 and is a
project director of our construction business responsible for supervising
our project managers and overseeing the construction matters. He is
also a director of Grand Tech Construction Company Limited. Mr. Au-
Yeung possesses more than 35 years’ experience in the construction
industry.

Mr. Au-Yeung holds a Higher Certificate in Civil Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University), Bachelor of Science in Building from Brighton Polytechnic
(now known as university of Brighton) and a Diploma in Construction
Management from the Hong Kong Construction Industry Training
Authority. Mr. Au-Yeung is a member of both the Chartered Institute of
Building and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers.

Mr. Ng Kwok Fong, aged 45, joined our group in 1998 and is the
technical director of our construction business in respect of our building
design and construction projects and the Group Risk Officer. He is also a
director of Grand Tech Construction Company Limited.

Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University), a Bachelor of Laws from the University of London and a
Master of Laws Degree from the City University of Hong Kong. With dual
membership in the Institution of Structural Engineers in the United
Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Mr. Ng is a
chartered engineer of the United Kingdom as well as a registered
professional engineer of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Chan Sik Nin, aged 51, joined our group in 2013 and is the general
manager of our data centre leasing business responsible for such
business development and operation. Mr. Chan possesses more than 12
years' experience in the data centre industry and managed to succeed
major deals in providing high-tier data centre services for meeting the
stringent requirements from customers. Prior to joining our Group, he
was the Vice President of Sales & Business Development, and then re-
designated as the Vice President of Corporate Development of
iAdvantage Limited, a subsidiary of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. (stock
code: 8008) whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the
University of Canberra, a Diploma in Marketing & International Business
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a Professional Diploma in
Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Chuen, aged 50, is the company secretary of the
Company since July 2013. Mr. Leung has over 25 years' experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and company secretarial
matters. Prior to joining our Group, he worked for and held senior
positions in various listed companies in Hong Kong and was responsible
for their finance, accounting and company secretarial functions.
Currently he is an independent non-executive director of E Lighting
Group Holdings limited (stock code: 8222), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung is a practicing member of the HKICPA, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom
and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators respectively. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong
Kong, a Master's Degree in Business Administration jointly awarded by
the University of Wales and the University of Manchester and a Master’s
Degree in Business (Logistics Management) from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology (now known as RMIT University).

Save as disclosed, each of the senior management and the company
secretary of our Company has not been a director of any other publicly
listed company during the three years preceding the date of this annual
report.
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, and regards a pre-eminent board
of directors, sound internal controls and accountability to all
shareholders as the core elements of its corporate governance
principles. The Company endeavours to ensure that its businesses are
conducted in accordance with rules and regulations, and applicable
codes and standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
Throughout the FY 2016, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for management of the Group,
including the responsibilities of formulating business strategies,
directing and monitoring the Group’s development. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board is also required to approve the
Group's strategic development plan and major investments; review
the Group's financial performance; identify principal risks of the
Group’'s business and ensure adequate systems of risk
management and internal control system. The Board also
delegates certain responsibilities to various board committees to
deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs.

The day-to-day operations and administration are delegated to the
management of the Company under the leadership of the
executive Directors.

The Board currently comprises eight members, as detailed below:
Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah

Mr. Kan Yau Wo

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill

Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny

Mr. Chan Hung Ming
Mr. Lau Chi Wah

Mr. Yuen Ying Wai
Mr. Kwan Wing Wo

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 27 to
32 of this annual report. There is no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship among members of the Board.
A list of Directors and their roles and functions has been published
on the Company’s website.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with the aim of
achieving diversity on the Company’s Board. The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees
diversity of perspectives at the Board level as essential in achieving
a sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry
experience and expertise. All board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against a variety of
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Currently, the Board comprises all male Directors with diverse
backgrounds and/or extensive expertise in corporate
management, with over 50% of the Directors possessing
professional qualifications.

All executive Directors have served the Group for over five years
and all independent non-executive Directors were appointed with
effect from the Listing Date. The term of office of all independent
non-executive Directors has been fixed for a specific term of not
more than three years. The Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
("AGM") in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has complied Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and
met the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules of at least
one-third of the members of the Board being independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, Mr. Mok Kwai Piu Bill, one of the
independent non-executive Directors, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.
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3. Board and Board Committee Meetings 3. EREAEFLZHEGH
The Board's attendance in the general meetings, board meetings EERFE T NEEHACRESS 2
and board committee meetings during FY 2016 are as follows: Eee N EE BN HEEYNLT
Meetings Attended/Held
SRLERY A
Annual Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration Nomination General General
Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
= EEg ENEEE FHEEE REEZEE RREFAE RREIAE
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Chan Hung Ming BRI LE 5/5 - - - 1/1 111
Mr. Lau Chi Wah AEELE 5/5 - - - 11 11
Mr. Yuen Ying Wai REBLE 5/5 - - - 111 1"
Mr. Kwan Wing Wo Bk g 5/5 - - - 111 1
Independent Non- BIYFHTES
Executive Directors
Mr. Tsui Ka Wah BRERE 5/5 3/3 2/2 11 1”1 11
Mr. Kan Yau Wo ERMEE 5/5 3/3 2/2 11 1" 11
Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill REELE 5/5 3/3 2/2 11 171 11
Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny  ZR@%4 5/5 3/3 212 111 1/1 111
4. Conflict of Interest 4. Fl25 o€
If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being WEEENEZC B TFTERNEERTAHE
considered in the board meeting, he will abstain from voting. EF=EE - RANRERR - EFNZEHEN
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest BUNTEEREEERRBE@N=E
will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict of interest ZRHYEIR ©
iSSUES.

o N AR B AR DR B

O3]

Directors” and Officers’ Liability Insurance

U1

The Company has appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage RKABEAEELNSPBESIREBES
relating to directors’ and officers’ liability to indemnify the Directors FAWRE - REESERSREEEEE
and senior management against any potential liabilities arising EEREAMEARAREBEENETE
from the Company’s business activities for which such Directors ffe

and senior management may be held liable.
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The Company has received confirmation from each Director that
he had sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company
for the year. The Directors have disclosed to the Company the
number and nature of offices they held in Hong Kong or overseas
listed public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies and
organisations and an indication of the time involved. They are
reminded to notify the Company in a timely manner of any
changes of such information. All Directors are encouraged to
attend the Board meeting and board committee meeting in person.
For the Directors and committee members who are unable to
attend the meeting, participation through electronic means is
arranged and available.

All Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Hung Ming, Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Mr.
Yuen Ying Wai, Mr. Kwan Wing Wo, Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, Mr. Kan Yau
Wo, Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill and Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny, had
participated in continuous professional development with respect
to directors duties, relevant programmes and seminars, in
compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. A record of
the Directors’ participation in such programmes is kept by the
Company. Reading materials on the latest developments or
updates in connection to the Group’s businesses, accounting,
regulatory and corporate governance aspects were provided to
the Directors. They also received monthly financial highlights
provided by the management.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are currently two separate
positions held by Mr. Chan Hung Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah respectively
with clear distinction in responsibilities.

Mr. Chan Hung Ming, being the Chairman, is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall strategies
and business development directions for the Group, to ensure that
adequate, complete and reliable information is provided to all Directors
in a timely manner, and to ensure that the issues raised at the Board
meetings are explained appropriately.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, being the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for the
daily operations of the Group and the implementation of business
policies, objectives and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board,
and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties. Given below are the main corporate governance duties of the
Board:

() to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group
and the Directors; and

(iv) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established three committees, namely, the remuneration
committee, audit committee and nomination committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs and discharging its functions.
Sufficient resources are provided to enable the Board committees to
undertake their specific role.

The Company established the remuneration committee on 23 July
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance to Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference are posted on the
Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy,
structure and remuneration package relating to Directors and
senior management of the Group and to ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration. The remuneration
committee consists of four independent non-executive Directors,
and the chairman of the committee is Mr. Tsui Ka Wah.

During FY 2016, the remuneration committee held two meetings to
review the remuneration policy and structure, assess the
performance of executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on the annual remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.
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Details of remuneration of Directors and senior management are
set out in note 13 and 14(b) to the financial statements
respectively.

The Company established the audit committee on 23 July 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. During the year, the terms of reference of audit
committee were revised to include risk management functions
with effect from 1 April 2016. The revised terms of reference have
been posted on the Company’s website and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; to review the
financial statements, risk management and internal control
systems; and to oversee the financial reporting and the
effectiveness of the internal control procedures. The audit
committee consists of four independent non-executive Directors,
and the chairman of the committee is Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill, who
holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required under
Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The audit committee held three meetings during the FY 2016. The
committee members also met in separate session with the
external auditor without the presence of executive Directors.

The work of the audit committee during the year included:

() review the audited financial statements and annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 March 2015;

(i) review the unaudited interim report and interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 September
2015;

(i) review the work of internal control advisor on assessing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system;

(iv) recommend the appointment of new external auditor
following the resignation of the then external auditor on 28
January 2016;

(v)  review the revised terms of reference of audit committee.
The Group’s audited financial statements and annual results

announcement for the year ended 31 March 2016 were reviewed
by the audit committee on 2 June 2016.
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The Company established the nomination committee on 23 July
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with A.5 of
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of references
are posted on the Company’s website and the websites of the
Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The nomination
committee consists of four independent non-executive Directors,
and the chairman of the committee is Mr. Kan Yau Wo.

The nomination committee held one meeting during FY 2016 to
review the size and composition and diversity of the Board by
taking into account the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business development of
the Group and for effective leadership.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in the Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquires to all Directors by
the Company, all Directors confirmed their compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the FY 2016.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group'’s affairs
and of its results and cash flow in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622) and the
applicable disclosures provisions of the Listing Rules. The management
provides information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other decisions by the
Board. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the
management for financial reporting purpose are prudent and
reasonable.

The responsibilities of the external auditor for the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 45 to 46 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Company’s external auditor to the Group during FY 2016 are
approximately HK$760,000 (2015: HK$1,680,000) and HK$577,000 (2015:
HK$693,000) respectively. The non-audit services mainly include the
review of the Group's interim financial report and tax advisory services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal controls and risk management. The Board
has identified the top risks of the Group and determined how much risk
the Board is willing to take to achieve the Group's strategic objectives.
During FY 2016, an in-house internal audit department had been set up.
In addition, the Group established a risk management system based on
the “Three Lines of Defence” model. Each business unit is required to
identify and manage risks on a day-to-day basis as the first line of
defence. The Group Risk Officer, a new position in the Group and acting
as the second line of defence, provides oversight of the risk
management activities of the first line of defence. Internal auditor, as the
third line of defence, provides independent and objective assurance on
the overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
system.

The audit committee had reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal controls system based on the
assessments made by the Group Risk Officer and the review report audit
undertaken by the internal control advisor and internal auditor. The
Board, through the review by the audit committee, considers that the
Group’s internal control and risk management system is effective and
adequate.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make informed investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company are expected to provide a forum
for communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the board committees
and, in their absence, other members of the respective committees are
available to answer questions at shareholder meetings. The Company’s
external auditor is also invited to attend the AGM to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

A2 Bl Y <
MARNBINBZEMN - T — N FERAERR
HEE T R IEE TR BN 5 Bl 494 760,0007%8
TT(ZF—FT4F : 1,680,000 7T) &577,0005 7T ( =
T—FRF 1 693,000870) ° IEFRBESBIE
ERAEE T SRS RIS RS o

Je K A B e 1A A 42 il
SErepamieaucABERMEREE R
MEEERRET EFQCHBLAEEREHEN
RARR IHTEFSRERLAEENERAE
R AZMEERKF - ARESH LR =
T NFEKIL - IS AREBER [ =ZEHAR]
BEARVERRBREERS - F 8K SFH
BUMEELERBAEREZRATER - £F
[\ Ben 4 B (R R BT RRIBAL) E R E —BDAR - B
RE-BHROARERZDREHEE - RFE
FHEMERE ZEIR - HREBREE RAHNERR
=mIRMBL N EERE

ERZBERBEERRAEPTIENERAE
EHIEER A AR E A BB B iR A wE - B
SE 2 RBEIERABEE R G ETERMRER -
KBEZZEENEN  EFERR/AKENA
FRES TR M AR E IR R A MM T 5

BRI SR 4% I

RRRRE BREREBEBIITERKREER
BEEREETRAKERGRRLRBEALTE -
ARRIHARRERHREEAL LR QA
BERARRRMIRE EERAERFABEREREDN
BBk

ARBRRAEELARETSHBRREWHEART
B EBEFRIFUNTEERRERIFE(WMERER
HE AIRZESHMKE) BHERRAEE
1M - AR BN ERED IR B E R RR A

E T TFARIE A2 BEM 35 o AR e

AE
K&
RRBBREHIER -

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A0 58 5 ¥R

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.grandming.com.hk, where information and updates on the
Group'’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
and posted it on the Company’s website since the Listing Date and will
review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The following procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM of
the Company are prepared in accordance with the Articles:

(i) One or more Shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings, shall have the right, by written notice,
to require an EGM to be called by the directors for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(i) Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company by post to the
Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong at 19/F, Railway Plaza,
39 Chatham Road South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, or by email to info@grandming.com.hk.

(i) The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

(iv) If the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM within 21
days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a
Director:

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring
Director (“Candidate”) for election as a director at a general
meeting by lodging the following documents at the
headquarter of the Company in Hong Kong or the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services limited, at level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong:

(@ a written notice (“Proposal Notice”) of the intention to
propose the Candidate for election as a Director, which
must (i) state the information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, which is available on
the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkex.com.hk) and (ii)
must be signed by the shareholder; and

(b)  a written notice (“Consent Notice") by the Candidate,
which must () indicate his/her willingness to be elected
as a Director and consent to the publication of his/her
personal information as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules; and (ii) must be signed by the
Candidate.

The Proposal Notice and the Consent Notice shall be lodged
for a period of at least 7 clear days commencing no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and ending no later than 7 clear days before the
date of such general meeting.
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(i) Other Proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may lodge a
written request, duly signed, at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

1. Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less than
20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting of the
Company.

2. Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less than
10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

3. Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less than
10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries in writing with their detailed
contact information to the company secretary of the Company or
the Board either by:

()  Post to the Company’s headguarter in Hong Kong at 19/F,
Railway Plaza, 39 Chatham Road South, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong; or

(i Email to info@grandming.com.hk

(if)
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During FY 2016, the Company did not amend its constitutional
documents.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the chairman, the Board and the Board
committees by ensuring good information flow and Board policy and
procedures are followed. The company secretary is an employee of the
Company and is appointed by the Board. The company secretary reports
to the chairman and chief executive officer. All directors may call upon
him for advice and assistance at any time in respect of his duties. The
company secretary obtained a practitioner’s endorsement of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with the Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of the company secretary
are shown on page 32 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Tel : +852 2218 8288 25t Floor Wing On Centre

Fax: +852 2815 2239 111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
R

TS - +852 2218 8288 EETHEP111E

8K : +852 2815 2239 Jk&H25

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Grand Ming
Group Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 47 to 131, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun
Practising Certificate Number P05804

Hong Kong, 2 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

0 R 5 AR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_Z—RF=A=1T—81FEAETIITR)

Revenue g

Direct costs BERAR
Gross profit EF

Other revenue H bl s

Other net income o PNE -
General and administrative expenses —MRITHAS

Increase in fair value of investment properties & ¥ % ~ A F(E#0

Profit from operations KERF

Finance costs B SR AR

Profit before taxation BRB RIS R

Income tax FriSHt

Profit for the year EEERF

Earnings per share (note) SREF (H)
— Basic and Diluted —EAARREE

Note: Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2015
have been restated for the impact of the bonus issue of shares as
explained in notes 26(iv) and 26(v).

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
the profit for the year are set out in note 15(a).

The notes on pages 54 to 131 form part of these financial statements

17

10(a)

10
11

16

967,579

(798,340)

169,239
1,889
3,157

(14,136)

285,195

445,344
(18,234)

427,110
(25,181)

401,929

68.5

846,174

(679,398)

166,776
3,619
3,053

(13,427)

211,723

371,744
(19,595)

352,149
(24,33¢)

327,813

55.9

FiaE < N B R 26(v) B 26(v) PR - BLE —F — R 4F
ZA=t-BULEFENEREAREIRNER

BEITALRREY

FLAES| o

BRAFEMNENTARBEEANRSFIEE

FAHMIEE15(0) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

f B HH AR B 1 At 2 i Y 5 R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHEZZ—REF=A=1T—RA1FEABTIITR)

2016 2015
—®-XxE  —T-HF
Note $'000 $'000
et T Tt
Profit for the year REERF 401,929 327,813
Other comprehensive income Hit 2w 12
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to B & AJgEE T A Z 187587
profit or oss: HA :
Available-for-sale securities: —H/\tti =)
Change in fair value NEEEF (1,361) (797)
Reclassification adjustment for impairment FEEBEENAZ R
loss transferred to profit or loss ESi=ERE S 2,191 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,, 830 I
Cash flow hedges: REMEL A -
Change in fair value, net of tax RNEEES - RTIE (3,262) 6,571
Reclassification adjustment for gain BeREY hE
on cash flow hedging instrument EMOBERESEER
transferred to profit or loss (3,988) -
. (72500 ¢ 6,571
Other comprehensive income for the year, REEHMEERE -
net of tax meHs (6,4200 ! 5,774
Total comprehensive income for the year ZREE2EUKZSHEE 395,509 333,587
The notes on pages 54 to 131 form part of these financial statements. ESAR N BEFEMFERZEVBRK—HD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

o RN

As at 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZE-—RE=ZA=1T—8(AETIIR)

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets
Other financial assets

Current assets

Gross amount due from customers
for contract work

Trade and other receivables

Restricted and pledged deposits

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Gross amount due to customers
for contract work

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

Derivative financial instruments

Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
BEEE
—REME
—WE - BEMERE

EEIREE
Hiv o BEE

RBEE
RUEEFPENTIEER

TR W B 5k e LA FE MR TR
IR I e 2 IR 7K
R MRTTHETF

RBAE
ENEPAMNTIRER

& A5 R R B EL At FE 5 5KIR
RITER

TEEmMTA

e IR

RBEERE

REERRBAE

17

11(c)
18

19
20
21
21

19
22
23
24
11(c)

3,290,000
128,765

3,418,765
45
12,809

3,431,619

18,815
206,185
53,616
119,565

398,181

17,292
219,795
125,546

7,815

370,448

27,733

3,459,352

2,985,000
716

2,985,716

14,170

2,999,886

72,574
232,632
45,984
131,562

482,752

7,616
237,599
147,880

5,236

6,150

404,481

78,271

3,078,157
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
B BRI R (2)

As at 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZE—RE=ZA=+—8AETIIR)

Non-current liabilities FRBERS

Bank loans RITER 23 944,709 926,973

Deferred tax liabilities EEIAAE 11(c) 32,386 31,117

Derivative financial instruments TEESmITA 24 8,530 158
985,625 958,248

NET ASSETS EEZRE 2,473,727 2,119,909

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR S

Share capital RN 26 5,866 4,848

Reserves HiE 2,467,861 2,115,061

TOTAL EQUITY AR 2,473,727 2,119,909

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 2 June BEeRN T —NENAHIERISETR
2016

Chan Hung Ming Lau Chi wah
R #L B8R g5
Director Director
BF EF
The notes on pages 54 to 131 form part of these financial statements. FESAT 13 BAFEMIBRZETBERE—SD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE T RF=ZA=1T—BIEFEUAETIIT)

At 1 April 2014 R-B-mEWA-A
Changes in equity for 2015: —S-HFEEZXEH:

Profit for the year KERHH
Other comprehensive income  Eft 2 E U 12(0)

Total comprehensive income  KAEE2EMZELE
for the year

Shares issued under the scrip — REURR Bt 2IMETZ

dividend scheme B 1n 26()
Isste of new shares under BEARE TMBETLH
the honus issues B 1n 26(1i) (i)

Interim dividend declared and 2B N NAEEH
paid in respect of the current FREARRE

year 15(@)
Final dividend approved in HEBR E—FERMRS
respect of the previous year R & 15(b)
At 31 March 2015 and R-B-1f
1 April 2015 =R=t+-BR
—2-15¥0A-A

Changes in equity for 2016: —ZE— A FEHEEF:

Profit for the year KEE R
Other comprehensive income  Efh 2 E iz 12(b)

Total comprehensive income  RAEE2HNFHAE
for the year

Issue of new shares under RBARETMRIT LA

the bonus issues i) 26(1v),v)
Interim dividend declaredand B EIR R X NAEEH

paid in respect of the current— FH3RE

year 15()
Final dividend approved in HEBR E—FERMRE

respect of the previous year &2 15(0)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-xE=f=+-H

The notes on pages 54 to 131 form part of these financial statements.

4,000

841

4,848

1,018

5,866

98,934 (33) (6,443 1723971 1,820,429

- - - 327,813 327,813

- 797) 6,571 - 5,774

- 797) 6,571 327,813 333,587
2,796 - - - 2,803
(841) - - - -
- - - (18,510) (18,510)

- - - (18,400) (18,400)
100,389 (830) 128 2,014,874 2,119,909
= = - 401,929 401,929

= 830 (7,250) - (6,420)

- 830 (7,250) 401,929 395,509
(1,018) = = = -
= = = (21,330) (21,330)

= = - (20,361) (20,361)
99,871 = (7,122) 2,375,112 2,473,727

ESAE N EMEMEBNZENERE &0
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
e Blaiie R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHEZZ—REF=A=1T—RA1FEABTIITR)

Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation R B AT A
Adjustments for: AT EBEELDRAE
— Interest income — FEMA 8
— Dividend income from unlisted securities — JE_F T &5 09R% S U A 8
— Increase in fair value of investment — REWERFEEN

properties 17
— Net unrealised gain on derivative — ITESRTAERSRKEFE

financial instruments 9
— Net gain on cashflow hedging instrument — P EHHENR SRS

reclassified from equity Ehh Uz F R 9
— Impairment of available-for-sale securities — 7] f H & &4 2~ A 9
— Gain on a bargain purchase in relationto  — FHEUEEH B A 72 Wz

the acquisition of a subsidiary 9
— Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) —EREE () F5E 9
— Finance costs — B RR 10(a)
— Depreciation — e 10(c)
Changes in working capital: EEESED
— Decrease/(increase) in trade and — FE U BR R % L A E W R IR R

other receivables (3 )
— Decrease/(increase) in gross amount due — fEE P& 4 TIRELER L

from customers for contract work (3 hn)
— (Decrease)/increase in trade and — e RRAR S Al A 5R0R OBl )

other payables /3
— Increase in gross amount due to — ENEPEHIIREREILM

customers for contract work

Cash generated from operations REMBERS
Tax paid [REREE
Net cash generated from BETEERETFHE

operating activities

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

427,110

(574)

(816)

(285,195)

(1,559)

(3,988)
2,191

199
18,234
2,881

26,447

59,687

(17,803)

10,592

237,406

(20,859)

216,547

352,149

(1,449)

(810)

(211,723)

(2,716)

(223)
(114)
19,595
652

(91,000)

(23,965)

124,464

9,285

174,145

(23,942)

150,203



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
WABEeRa®(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_Z—RF=A=1T—81FEAETIITR)

Investing activities BREEE
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets EEETEEMNK (3,930) (863)
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary BEWB AR - (125,000)
Expenditure on investment properties KEERS (131,149) (284,724)
Interest received BFE 574 1,449
Decrease in deposits with original maturity AR R:TEIHARBE=EAH

over three months at acquisition FoR L - 4,462
Dividends received from unlisted investments B2 U3k F &5 a9 I& 2 816 810
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTARSFH (133,689) (403,866)
Financing activities il E B
Proceeds from bank loans IRITE RIS HRIE 1,253,446 871,911
Repayment of bank loans BEERITEXR (1,259,212) (618,528)
Increase in pledged deposits EANE EHIF R (7,831) (2,727)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid EAFE R E A E KA (39,567) (35,778)
Dividends paid ERRE (41,691) (34,107)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMETH (TR ELERLFHE

financing activities (94,855) 180,777
Net decrease in cash and RERASSENHD FE

cash equivalents (11,997) (72,886)
Cash and cash equivalents at FINRERASEEY

the beginning of the year 131,562 204,448
Cash and cash equivalents at FRNRERASEEY

the end of the year 21 119,565 131,562
The notes on pages 54 to 131 form part of these financial statements. FHAE 1 BFEM BN RSN BHRE 2D -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 765 e % B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

1.

54

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 14 August 2012. The
registered office and principal place of business are located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and 19/F, Railway Plaza, 39 Chatham Road
South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and the shares
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 9 August 2013.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of building
construction, property leasing and property development.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs effective on 1
January 2015
The HKICPA had issued the following amendments to HKFRSS
that are first effect for the current accounting year and
relevant to the Group:
HKFRS (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRS (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle
Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans:

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Contributions

The application of the above amendments has no material
impact on the Group's financial statements.

— &R
ARARRZE——ZFN\R+UEHEHRERS
A BERRBRAR - AN ERE
T = B & % i 2 55 Bl iz 72 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands & &8 f1
BERV AR ER 3R EE KNE 1912 -

ARBB/REEBRAR - HEHR T —=
FNANBEEEBARZAERATE ([E
R ERET -

AEBEZRFEFRE
B -

TR A0 48 S8 25 e o 3 U

MEHERYE

(@ BTAR_-F-AE-A-HEKRZ
9 S 25 o o R A A AT AR
BEGE ARG RM T BAREE
BERLIRASHFREEREMNEL
BT S ERROERT AN -

EBERE 2010220124
ERI(BETA) BEZFELUE

EBUERE 2011 E20134F
ERI(BETA) BEAZFENHE

EBGEER  ATERAEE -
F 1958 BEHK
(2011 4F)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The following new or revised HKFRSS, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

HKFRS (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation '

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements '
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments 2

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture 3

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

3 Mandatory effective date is yet determined but early
application is permitted

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities to use
judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when considering the
layout and content of their financial statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income from
equity accounted interests in associates and joint ventures
will be split between those items that will and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in aggregate as a
single line item within those two groups.

R A9 7 8 S0 5 o Y S ()

THIERMEERERZ ZFHREE
AT B s YE Al BN 5 B B TS R
FRBEERER WA S BIR R R -

BT BERELER] 20122 20144F

CHEN) BEZ
FREHGE

BB EHER HEE
F 15 (BRI A)

FEGRTER HRIREHITE
F16HREE K SHTT AR
el vyl
385k (IEFTAN)

BB EHER B BA TS ERER Y

5275 (BRI ) A"
FEMBHRERER  SRTA?

F 958 (2014 5F)

BEMERELER  KEEEERE
F10RREB NG
SR 285 EZEHE
CHEN SO ABES

EBUEREEDN  RABPAHN
1558 W zs2

1 MNoZE—XF— A B2 %MnBH

S EAR AR
2 R-ZE—N\F—A—Bs 2 %mRnBE
SEHHARAEM

3 R EESE SR I AE B H - (BRTIR PR
I3

BEBETERE 15 (1577F) — HKE
it #
ZEEIERESBEREERAMK
BROBBEATKRERBT LSS
HERNSE 1 SR B & R K

ERRBERR A EDRMBARE

2 EEE L ER S ED
REELRBTEEMN D BEEREMNIA
B YRzMmEARRKRERE—
HEZ5 -

R IRA TR o 2015/16 4E



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BABTHIR)

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 — Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant and
equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that amortisation based on revenue
is not appropriate for intangible assets. This presumption can
be rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity method
in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in its separate financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the
business model test) and that have contractual terms that
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R Bl R (48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for
all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

28

R A9 7 8 S0 5 o Y S ()

BEBHBEREERFEIY (2014 F) —
SR THE)
BRI EERIFE ORI IR AR
EBETABRFENBESREER
AFB B R E IR R EE R (R T HE
R EREIFRHEEEEEER)
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R BHRERAE T RERERRE
EEE -

AW BRELENFIRERB LGS
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RETEMRTE - HERERA EER
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ERBESHSIBNAABEEZDHERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5. Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
gualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of adopting the above standards and amendments to
existing standards to the Group. The directors of the
Company have so far concluded that the application of these
new pronouncements will have no material impact on the
Group's financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(C)

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance provisions
relating to the disclosure requirements for of financial
statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622,
in relation to the disclosure requirements for financial
statements apply to the Company in this financial year.

The directors of the Company consider that there is no
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance,
however, the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, impacts
on the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. For example, the statement of financial
position of the Company is now presented in the notes to
the financial statements rather than as a primary statement
and related notes to the statement of financial position of
the Company are generally no longer presented.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(C)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

2. PRANE U I S i YR B ()

(C)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 4()), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified

as held for sale).

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets

and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for

impairment (see note 4(i)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are
as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technigue that uses only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
COSts.

Other investments in securities, being those held for non-
trading purposes, are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At each end of the reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As
an exception to this, investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses (see note 4(i)).
Dividend income from equity securities and interest income
from debt securities calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policies set out in notes 4(r)(iv) and 4(r)(v), respectively.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of monetary items, such as debt
securities, are recognised directly in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 4(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At each end of the reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged (see note 4(f)).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity
and is included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of
the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as
when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or 10ss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period
or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction
affects profit or loss.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S 765 e % Bt s

(&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB TEFIR)
4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash flow hedges (Continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point
remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it is
recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss immediately.

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
4(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless
they are still in the course of construction or
development at the end of the reporting period and
their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that
time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 4(r)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
4(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 4(h).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(ii)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 4().

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each end of the reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 3-5years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of furniture, fixtures and other
fixed assets have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, except
where property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 4(g)(i)).

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see note 4(g)(i)).

4. ERGHEBORE)

HAKERE LR (BR AR S —
R 5) BT HRERIR 15 E HARR A 2
—HERZEREEEAMBD—FXE
F30R - AZERFERLESHE -
BREREDRBEFERBENATIEL -
M wARLHEEBATLANE

1=

=

(i) HETFEEHEELE
AEBERBEEEREBBERH
BRENBARB Bk & REHRER
EXAKENEE @0 BER/RE
MEMERA - TEHAEEN
BAE YRR & EHRERLEARE
BHHESBESEEME - HR
BEREMHERBEAINEREME
EENDERETRVELER
BEMEARRSN : M BAR
B - AARINERIERER
B8 (RHE4Q0)

(i) HEHEEER
WASEHREERBEELHERE
MEEMERE  RIREHEEE
BN RS EHEHMRESS
HIRA - AFEBESTAREBREH
B M H M EERE R IF R M
AR E & E AT E A W tE AR
BRON - TS EEEERENE
RREEF N FHARRE A KA
7 e RAMERELHN G HIRE
MR B o

WEREBEEHERANLTIHN
AR E AR EOREH -
HEZMED BRREMERIERIN
(RHEEAR)

VB R A RAT o 2015/16 4F R HR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LA TLFIR)
4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at each end of the reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment 0ss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed.

4.

FEREEHEOR ()

(i)

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

HERERAMERERE

REBRSREHRFHEEE
B R R R AN S B A
AHERHR D BRI HERHH
EFRE AR E M BIH & 3F AV A
FEW SR BRRE - RER R E
EEEERAREIEIABTI
—IHHZEBREHOABERN
&

— BEBRABERMHEEE

— EX WERIEXNE
EEMBHEAT

— EBAFREREIETHE
O BEA

— BE WS @ELER
TR 18 50 T A T
My EmERSL R

— BRATARENAFERKR
fEe REI TR E RN E K
ZNI=R

HEEEAMATR - AHRIAT
7 E RERERIRERE

— BMERAIENEZRHE
flo YR F - i BEIR
MEEBEXN HEER
NemEERTESREAR
BEREEERNMHSE
RGBT RRE S
MEBEZEMZRTE - 1
PR 51 B O B AN 78 25 B0 R
EEEATEE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical l0ss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or l0ss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each end of the reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— fixed assets (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts);

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

4.

FEREEHEOR ()
(i) HftEERE (E)
—  ERBEEE

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

WEEXEMBREESE
B REEBRBE AW
Bl &5 AlEgnBa g
RBEBE - LRTEL
BBRNRERBE 1R
LR EA (s —HEE
) K EEMREE - HE
BEREETERHIER
REM@ER A FEREEE
RS (f A] 5H &) Sk fiE A (B
B(HATEE)

TR 1B TR A [B]
BN ZEEMS
fid & AN EEE Al Y = & 58
B R B F IR A R &
B AIREERESETH
C-B{EZREERTS
eI

P 18 [ 1) R0 BB 18 A IR %
B 1T F 2 N R SRR E S
EmMEEENEEREE
AR e FTEE R E R R
RIERE L 2 FRE AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rule, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 4(i)()) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and not profit or 0ss.

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 4(r)(i). When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract at the end of the
reporting period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the statement of
financial position as the “Gross amount due from customers
for contract work” (as an asset) or the “Gross amount due to
customers for contract work” (as a liability), as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are included
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included under

“Trade and other payables”.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 4(i)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts. If collection
of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective

interest method.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 4(q)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Trade and other payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,

they are presented as non-current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(g)(i),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the end of the reporting period unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each end of the reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LA TLFIR)
4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantee issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in
an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated
rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 4(qg)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Contract revenue
When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract
is recognised using the percentage of completion
method.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Rental related income
Rental related income is recognised on an accrual
basis.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the Group'’s right to receive payment
is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEGHFIHBOR (&)

4.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (U)(@).

(vii) A person identified in (u)(@)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viiy The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

As described in note 17, investment properties and
investment properties under development are stated at fair
value based on the valuation performed by an independent
firm of professional valuers.

In determining the fair value of investment properties, the
valuers have based on a method of valuation which involves,
inter-alia, certain estimates including appropriate discount
rates, terminal capitalisation rates and expected future
market rents. In relying on the valuation report, management
has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.

Investment properties under development are valued by
estimating the fair value of such properties as if they were
completed in accordance with the relevant development
plan and then deducting from that amount the estimated
costs to complete the construction, financing costs and a
reasonable profit margin.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. BR o e Et A B & Al R A i E R
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued) FERIR (7)

As explained in notes 4(j) and 4(r)(i), revenue and profit
recognition on an uncompleted project is dependent on
estimating the total outcome of the construction contract, as
well as the work done to date. Based on the Group's recent
experience and the nature of the construction activities
undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the
point at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue can be reliably
estimated. As a result, until this point is reached the amounts
due from customers for contract work as disclosed in note
19 will not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work done to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total costs or revenue may be higher
or lower than estimated at the end of the reporting period,
which would affect the revenue and profit recognised in
future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

The Group evaluates whether there is any objective evidence
that trade receivables are impaired, and estimates
allowances for doubtful debts as a result of the inability of
the debtors to make required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance,
credit-worthiness of the customer and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. BEeasABREGAHREREN
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued) FERIR (7)

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining
fair value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technigue utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

— Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

—  Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs; and

— Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

— Investment properties and investment properties under
development (note 17);

—  Other financial assets (note 18); and
—  Derivative financial instruments (note 24).
For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the items above, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s
reportable segments:

— Construction: contracting of construction of residential
buildings, commercial buildings and data centres for external
customers and for group companies

—  Property leasing: leasing of data centres and office premises

—  Property development: development and sale of properties

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order. Central revenue and
expenses are not allocated to the operating segments as they are
not included in the measure of the segment’s profit that is used by
the chief operating decision-makers for assessment of segment
performance.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, non-current and current
assets with the exception of investments in financial assets,
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade payable, accruals and other current and non-current
liabilities attributable to the business activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to income generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.

During the year, the Group performed a review on its businesses
and rationalised the classifications for certain segment results
allocated to the respective reporting segments. Accordingly,
certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTFIR)
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. JrEbHERE (&)
(@) Segment revenue and results O e E
Property
Construction Property leasing development Total
BE NERE NERR @5t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-XE -T-1F ZE-RE -T-1F ZE-RE -T-1F ZE-RE —T-1F
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51; (B5) (85) E27)
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
r T r T i T r T
Revenue from external - RSN eglnz
customers 822,377 704,126 145,202 142,048 = - 967,579 846,174
Inter-segment revenue 4 SpRETkEs 127,800 228,800 1,735 - - - 129535 228800
Segment revenue Al 950,177 932926 146,937 142,048 - - 1,097,114 1,074974
Segment results PEHEE 72,693 66,142 89,824 92,264 (18) (35 162,499 158371
Unallocated netincome A2 ESFUA 3,249 6,672
Unallocated expenses KA EZH (7,396) (5,022)
Netgainoncashflow — EE£HEHHTES
hedginginstruments I3 3,988 -
Impairment of available- T EESRIE
for-sale investment (2,191) -
Increase in fair value of % &W% 7 AT E
investment properties 11 285,195 211,723
Finance costs BHAR (18,234)  (19,595)
Profit before taxation ~ HET&F| 427,110 352,149

FEVI MR RAT o 2015/16 4,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment assets
Construction

Property leasing
Property development

Total segment assets

Available-for-sale securities
Deferred tax assets
Unallocated office premises
Unallocated head office and
corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Segment liabilities
Construction

Property leasing
Property development

Total segment liabilities

Tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated head office and corporate

liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities
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305,016
3,359,086

3,664,102
12,809

45
125,095

27,749

3,829,800

364,444
947,094
15

1,311,553

7,815
32,386

4,319

1,356,073

402,593
3,055,767

3,458,360

14,170

10,108

3,482,638

419,030
900,893
30

1,319,953

6,150
31,117

5,509

1,362,729



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTTIIR)
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

6. ik ()

(c) Other segment information (c) HAthsrEpEkt
Construction Property leasing Property development Unallocated Total
BE EZik DR AR &5t
2016 2015 2016 215 2016 2015 2016 215 2016 2015
ZE-RE ZF-0F ZE-RE ZF-0F ZE-RE T-RF ZE-RE T-RF ZE-RE T-nfF
(Restated) (Restated)
&l 4]
$/000 $1000 $'000 $000 $'000 $1000 $'000 $000 $'000 $1000
T T T T T T T T T T
Additions to REERD
non-current AR
segment assets = a4 146923 AN707 = - 3812 289 150,735 42140
(d)  Geographic information d)  HuEE R
No geographic information has been presented as all of the HRAAREEMAELENHED B
Group's operating activities are carried out in Hong Kong. 17 WA E2 )& EHR o
(e) Information about major customers e) HBAHTEXRFMER

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group is as follows:

IR B B BB B A £ E a0 E5 10%
MEPIT

2016 2015

—E-KF —ZE-REF

$'000 $°000

Fx T

Customer A ZEA 496,573 130,241
Customer B ZFB 134,095 344,707
Customer C ZFEC 108,134 -
Customer D ZED 54,147 204,415

Revenue from all of the above customers are generated from

building construction.

FEVI MR RAT o 2015/16 4,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

7. REVENUE 7. Wik
Revenue which is derived from the Group's principal activities and FRNREARERTLSEKROERZWED
recognised during the year is analysed as follows: o
2016 2015
—E-XE —T-REF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Revenue from building construction EFEEks 822,377 704,126
Rental income LA 114,296 112,704
Rental related income AL MAEBA 30,906 29,344
967,579 846,174
8. OTHER REVENUE 8. Hits
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE—hF
$'000 $°000
T Tt
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 574 1,449
Dividend income from unlisted securities IEETEHFAREWA 816 810
Others HAith 499 1,360
1,889 3,619
9. OTHER NET INCOME 9. HiW AS#
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—hF
$'000 $'000
Frx 7T
Net unrealised gain on derivative financial STHE SR T BRI NS H 58

instruments 1,559 2,716
Net gain on cash flow hedging instruments HiEmPEFHENR S REER

reclassified from equity (note 12(b)) TR FUes (KaE 12(00) 3,988 -
Impairment of available-for-sale securities AR EEHBE (A 12(0)

(note 12(b)) (2,191) -
Net foreign exchange (l0ss)/gain SN 3 40F (B518) WS (199) 114
Gain on a bargain purchase in relation to the  :ZBUEEHTE A 7 2 Uz

acquisition of a subsidiary (note 25(a)) (Kiat25()) - 223

3,157 3,053
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@

(b)

()

Finance costs (@) BERAE
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable: %Eﬁ%mﬂ
— within five years %%ﬁ#ﬁimfét 37,115 35,075
— after five years TA’F%lﬁAﬂi{é%“i 1,223 =
Other borrowing costs ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ*”ﬁ)ﬂi 2,353 2,696
40,691 37,771
Less: Amount included in construction B ETAEREESL
contracts in progress et (6,801) (8,623)
Amount capitalised into investment ERERITEYE
properties and investment REREPIREYZE
properties under development * &5 (15,656) (9,553)
18,234 19,595
Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRK(BEESFHFH)
remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e Ié&ﬁﬁﬂaﬂ 78,982 69,508
Contributions to defined contribution FTE HRGRIRGT B
retirement plans 2,304 2,076
81,286 71,584
Less: Amount included in construction W FFAERRES NN SR
contracts in progress (67,837) (62,032)
Amount capitalised into investment BERERIZREYER
properties and investment BRPREMED
properties under development ik (6,989) (4,353)
6,460 5,199
Other items (c) HtEH
Rental income from investment properties KREMEFFHES A (114,296) (112,704)
Less: Direct outgoings W B 51,894 46,211
(62,402) (66,493)
Depreciation e 2,881 652
Impairment loss for trade receivables FEMW RS 2 RE SR
(note 20) (Ktz20) - 8
Reversal of impairment loss for trade ol pE W BR SR 2 BB 1R
receivables (note 20) (Bt3£20) (8) -
Auditors’ remuneration IZEEN N &
— audit services — EFRT 760 1,680
— other services — B AR 577 693
The borrowing costs have been capitalized at the range of 2.34% to * BEERABEIZF LK234%E600%( = F

6.00% (2015: 2.56% t0 3.29%) per annum

10. BB i i Al

EVIESE

—HhF : 256% % 3.29%) B

BBATE N E MR, (GEA) LT &IE

IR FRAT e 2015/16 4R FEHE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S 765 e % Bt s

(&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

INCOME TAX

11.

92

(@)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

Fie T%ﬁf.

(a)

BEE ISR N BT RL

Ir

2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—hF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Current tax AHEABLIR
Provision for Hong Kong Profits REEEBFEHEE
Tax for the year 22,539 20,154
Over-provision in respect of prior years AR F S iBRE (15) (188)
22,524 19,966
Deferred tax ELEBE
Origination and reversal of temporary EEA N O =R
differences 2,657 4,370
25,181 24,336
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin BIEEBRRELHERHASHEMNRA
Islands (“BVI”) and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not L0 - REEHBEMNEE R TE
subject to any income tax in the BVI and the Cayman Islands. SRASFSNERMEH -
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at EBNEHBEREANFEEGTE
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for R R A IR165%( = F — R F -
the year. 16.5%) 5t &
Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) %% F A 2 5 3 0% Pl 5 A5t Bl 5 B R

accounting profit before taxation at applicable tax rate:

B 6 31 B 0

2016 2015
—E-RE —FE—hF
$'000 $°000
Fx FIT
Profit before taxation B 5 B A 427,110 352,149
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RERANBEREEER 2
calculated at the rate applicable to the mAZ HETE 2
profits in the jurisdictions concerned pinpE) 70,473 58,105
Effect of non-taxable income EERVBANZE (46,370) (34,653)
Effect of non-deductible expenses TR HEAST M & 596 1,020
Effect of unused tax losses not recognised R RSB HIAES BN E 638 125
Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised tax 3B & 8 R R IBEIBH
losses utilised in the current year T (135) (34)
Over -provision in respect of prior years LA e fRRR RS (15) (188)
Others Efth (6) 39
Actual income tax expense BERRFTS B 25,181 24,336
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S 25 e 3 Wi

(&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

(c)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents:

. BB o)

(0 FREHEIRULA N BT A Bl g

(i)  Current taxation (i) FEHE

2016 2015
e e
$'000 $°000
Fx Tt

Provision for Hong Kong Profits NEEEBFEHEE
Tax for the year 22,539 20,154
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT AR5 R (14,724) (14,126)
7,815 6,028
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 25(a))  WEEFI B A7) (K1:E25(a)) - 122
7,815 6,150

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

(i) ERZEEHELEERARE
IR B B 5N R A HERR EI’JL

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BIE(BE) BENAEKITS
position and the movements during the year are as REFEENINT :
follows:
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of the
Deferred tax arising from; related Hedging
REUTEEELHE depreciation reserve Total
TEZHE
LNEBIE Hh e @3
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—MNFMA—H 24,944 (1,273) 23,671
Charged to other comprehensive income  7E £ 42 E iz Mk - 1,299 1,299
Charged to the profit or loss FREAINR 4,370 - 4,370
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 25()) Y FEFI & 2 7 (1 25(a) 1,777 - 1777
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R-E-RF=ZA=t-BK
—Z-1FMmA—H 31,091 26 31,117
Credited to other comprehensive income EE 2 EUZEAET A = (1,433) (1,433)
Charged to the profit or loss HEBFE NG 2,657 - 2,657
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R F=A=+—H 33,748 (1,407) 32,341

U EmMERARAT o 201516 4EHE 93



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

11.

12.

94

INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. 3B (&)
(c) Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial ) HAEMBMRUWEZENN GBI :
position represents: (Continued) (&)
(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (i) BEIEEHBEERERE(E)
(Continued)
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—-RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FiT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in FE4RE BB R R NFER
the consolidated statement of MIBEEF
financial position (45) -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in  TE4R& BTk R 2= AR IR
the consolidated statement of financial  FiIE & & /F 58
position 32,386 31,117
32,341 31,117
(d) At 31 March 2016, the Group has not recognised deferred (d) RZEBE—RF=ZA=+—H AT
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of $4,550,000 K A] BE EE A B SAHY 7k 2K B AR 5 358 ) LA
(2015: $1,844,000) as it is not probable that sufficient future M AFEANHRIEERE AEFEITE
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax FhoR A A I8 B 18 4,550,000 T ( = &
losses can be utilised. The tax losses do not expire under — R F 1,844,000 7v) ERIBELTHIEE
current tax legislation. E e MBRAMBEER  HWEBED
e HE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 12, A 2 i Wy £
(@) Tax effects relating to cash flow hedges included in (@) A BAEH A At 2 i W 25 Y Bl 4

other comprehensive income

3 0 B B R

2016 2015
—E-KEF —E Rt
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Pre-tax amount AR &% (8,683) 7,870
Tax charge I H 1,433 (1,299)
Net-of-tax amount BrEiieeE (7,250) 6,571
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

12. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued) 12, Hoftn 2 s ()

(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) Al 2 T W A A SRR 43 (455 R

including reclassification adjustments o JH )
2016 2015
—E-RE —=E—RF
$'000 $'000
T T

Available-for-sale securities AHHERS

Changes in fair value and net movement R E b 2 UL 25 N FER
in the fair value reserve during the year FRNAFEZGHRAFE

recognised in other comprehensive B FE

income (1,361) (797)
Reclassification adjustment transferred to BB FHEEE A 1Bz

profit or loss — impairment (note 9) — BB (M 9) 2,191 -
Net movement in the fair value reserve REMEEKEERFA

during the year recognised in other N EREESE)FE

comprehensive income 830 (797)
Cash flow hedges: REREE

Effective portion of changes in fair value of A S BRHIE T AN FEE T
hedging instruments recognised during BB D

the year (4,695) 7,870
Net deferred tax credited/(charged) to REME2EW AT (FIA) HIE

other comprehensive income JEFLIE ) F 58 1,433 (1,299)
Reclassification adjustment transferredto EBFABEAEZR —RERE

profit or loss — net gain on cash flow Hm T AFWEs (it 9)

hedging instruments (note 9) (3,988) -
Net movement in the hedging reserve REMEERZAERTEA

during the year recognised in other R EEEFE

comprehensive income (7,250) 6,571

U EmMERERAT o 201516 EEHE  9F



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BABTHIR)
13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EHFHM
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as BNSENTERESZHEMOT
follows:
2016
—E-RE
Basic salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees henefits in kind Bonuses  contributions Total
ERgsE 2
e RENER L4 RINGH BN @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr Tr T
Executive Directors HITES
Chan Hung Ming [ 7,88 - 1,638 410 18 2,066
Lau Chi Wah 2xE - 1,638 410 18 2,066
Yuen Ying Wai REE - 1,643 410 18 2,071
Kwan Wing Wo Bk A - 1,210 300 18 1,528
Independent Non- BUFHTES
Executive Directors
Tsui Ka Wah rxE 240 - 60 - 300
Kan Yau Wo R 240 - 60 - 300
Mok Kwai Pui Bl RER 240 - 60 - 300
Lee Chung Yiu Johnny TRIE 240 - 60 - 300
Total @t 960 6,129 1,770 72 8,931
2015
“T-h%F
Basic salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees  benefits in kind Bonuses contributions Total
A& - 28
e REWEN B4 RRErEIER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Fr T T
Executive Directors BTEZ
Chan Hung Ming el - 1,638 410 17 2,065
Lau Chi Wah BxE - 1,638 410 17 2,065
Yuen Ying Wai REE - 1,661 410 17 2,088
Kwan Wing Wo Bk - 1222 300 17 1,539
Independent Non- BIKBTES
Executive Directors
Tsui Ka Wah hRE 240 - 60 - 300
Kan Yau Wo ERH 240 - 60 - 300
Mok Kwai Pui Bill B5iZ 240 - 60 - 300
Lee Chung Yiu Johnny FRR 240 - 60 - 300
Total Bt 960 6,159 1,770 68 8,957
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S 5 R A B R (7

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTTIIR)

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
No director received any emoluments from the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year. No director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 March 2016 and

2015.

14. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(@) Emoluments of five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2016 include 4 (2015: 4) directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 13. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individual is as

——
(===]

=

13. #EAHM(#)
REFAMESEESAKERETAHE -
e/ DN ER AN S B a0 hn B AN 5 [ Ay 0 28 2
ERBRME BE_T—R"FL-ZT—1
FZA=+—"RHLEFE HEEEHENXF
BEREEAME o

14.

+.
4
(a)

B i N b B i A% B

4 5 i B N N4

HE_T-—R"F=A=1+—HIFE"
AEENLEAERFMALEREIA
(ZZE—0F 4R)EF EMERXW
F1BHE - HRA TS @ T ¢

follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-NQF
$'000 $°000
i FIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind H4e o EZBEREWER 1,306 1,202
Discretionary bonuses 323 293
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGET IR 18 17
1,647 1,512
The above individual's emoluments are within the following it AT ESHENT
band:
2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—-RF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
$1,500,000 to $2,000,000 1,500,000 7t £ 2,000,000 7T 1 1

U EmMERERAT o 201516 EEHE 9/



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

14. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID

14, T4 5w B N & K v 848 PR T

INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT & (%)

(Continued)

(b)  Emoluments of senior management (b) TR A P T <
Other than the emoluments of the Directors and five highest BRI 13 4@ T ENESE LT
paid individuals disclosed in notes 13 and 14(a), the ZEEFTMATHMEI BT R
emoluments of the remaining senior management fell within EEEBENMESER T EER :

the following bands:

2016 2015
—E—-XE —E-RHF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
Nil to $1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T 1 1
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £ 1,500,000 7T 1 1
15. DIVIDENDS 15. &S
(@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company () JEIRAAERR A AN E A A
attributable to profit for the year: BB
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid of HK4.0 B & & & ] #9 BiR% 5 5 1%
(2015: 4.2) cents per share A0BI(ZZ—HF  4.28(10) 21,330 18,510
Final dividend proposed after the end of RIpEEAREEIRE 2 KA S
the reporting period of HK4.0 (2015: 4.2) % 4.0
cents per share (ZE—HRF - 42780 23,464 20,361
44,794 38,871
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting R E R B BIRE 2 KRR B &
period has not been recognised as a liability at the reporting EHRERREREBE -
date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R Bl R (48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

15. DIVIDENDS (Continued) 15. B (4#)

(b)

(a)

Dividends payable to owners of the Company (b)
attributable to profit for previous year, approved and
paid during the year:

J& s b — I AE BE R A > W ASAE i
b B XA T A A F HERON R
B .

o

2016 2015
—E-KE “T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous RAFEHERT NN E—FE
year, approved and paid during the year RER B =% 4.2 751
of HK4.2 (2015: HK4.6) cents per share (ZZ—FF : 4651) 20,361 18,400
16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. FBE A
Basic earnings per share (@) FEREEAZF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$401,929,000 (2015: $327,813,000) and the weighted average
number of 586,587,747 shares (2015 (restated): 586,135,945
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

BREARFTIBEARTERRE
JFE {55 71 401,929,000 7T (—ZE—F 4F
327,813,0007T) R AF E AL TR
19 B O0 #E - 15 $1586,587,747 % ( — &
—HE(FF) : 586,1359458%) - 5t&
R

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-hF

(Restated)

(E7)

$'000 $'000

TR iR

Issued ordinary shares at 1 April REA—BEBTEERK 484,783 400,000

Effect of bonus issue of shares (note 26(iv), (v) ~ 4TRZE1TEVZ 28 (B aF 26(v) K (1)) 101,805 185,763

Weighted average number of shares issued VAR B A B T BITZ RO

under the scrip dividend scheme (note 26(})) ISR B (B At 26(1)) - 373

Weighted average number of shares at 31 March 7%= B =+— B 690 19 2 586,588 586,136
Diluted earnings per share (b) BB A A

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive potential
shares in existence during the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015.

HE_Z-—RFER-_ZT-HF=H
=+—RIEFEHRE AAFYEE
E#EERG  WERBERNRER
EARZMAAR e

IR A RA R o 2015716 EEHRYE 99



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BABTHIR)
17. FIXED ASSETS 17.
properties
Investment under
properties  development Sub-ota Sub-tota Tota
5y )
$000 000 000
T T T
Cost o valuation: AAFfE
At 1 April 2014 RZE-MFNA-H 1,817,000 535,000 2,352,000 9,803 9,803 2,361,803
Additions RE 4,49 289,782 294,271 863 863 295,140
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENBLA
(note 25(a) (W 250) 127,000 - 127,000 - - 127,000
Written off B - - - (415) (1) (1)
Surplus/(deficit) onrevaluation  EfE Rk /() (4,495) 216218 mins - - mins
At 31 March 2015 R-E-1F=A=1-H 1,944,000 1,041,000 2,985,000 10,251 10,251 2,995,251
Representing; B
Cost KA - - - 10,251 10,251 10,251
Valuation e 1,944,000 1,041,000 2,985,000 - - 2,985,000
1,944,000 1,041,000 2,985,000 10,251 10,251 2,995,251
Accumulated depreciation;  B3tiTE
At 1 April 2014 R-E-MEmA-A - - - 9,298 9,298 9,298
Charge for the year ERYi - - - 652 652 652
Written off B - - - (£19) (415) (415)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RFZA=t-B - - - - 91535 77777777 91535 77777777 9535 )
Carrying values: BEEE
At 31 March 2015 RZE2-1F=A=1-H 1,944,000 1,041,000 2,985,000 716 716 2,985,716
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

17. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 17. Bl (&)

Investment Furniture,
properties Buildings  fixtures and
Investment under heldfor  other fixed
properties  development Sub-total Oown use assets Sub-total Total
R B £ER
RENZ RENZ NGt BRYE  AftETEE NGt it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T n n n n n n
Cost or valuation: AR
At 1 April 2015 RZE-RFMA-H 1,944,000 1,041,000 2,985,000 - 10,251 10,251 2,995,251
Additions AE 1,150 145,655 146,805 - 3,930 3,930 150,735
Written off B = = - - (15) (15) (15)
Transfer g 1,059,655 (1,186,655) (127,000) 127,000 - 127,000 -
Surplus on revaluation BiERG 285,195 - 285,195 - - - 285,195
At 31 March 2016 RZE— E=F=1-F 3,290,000 - 3,290,000 127,000 14,166 141,166 3,431,166
Representing: IE:
Cost A = = = 127,000 14,166 141,166 141,166
Valuation [bE 3,290,000 - 3,290,000 - - - 3,290,000
3,290,000 - 3,290,000 127,000 14,166 141,166 3,431,166
Accumulated depreciation;  B3tiTE
At 1 April 2015 R-E-14MmA-A = = = = 9,535 9,535 9,535
Charge for the year ERit = - - 1,905 976 2,881 2,881
Written off B = = = - (15) (15) (15)
At 31 March 2016 RZE- EzA=1-H = = = 1,905 10,496 12,401 12,401
Cartying values: REEE
At 31 March 2016 RZE-R"F=A=1-H 3,290,000 - 3,290,000 125,095 3,670 128,765 3,418,765

tewisEm R AR o 201516 2w ()]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

17. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

@

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
investment properties under development is Level 3
recurring fair value measurements. The movement of these
balances are as follows:

17. BIEHE (&)

@)

At 1 April REA—H

Additions NE

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 25(a)) W i B 8 2 R (M2t 25(a))
Fair value adjustment NEEFHE

Transfer 2R,

At 31 March R=A=+—~”

Fair value adjustment of investment properties and
investment properties under development is recognised in
the line item “Increase in fair value of investment properties”
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3.

The Group’s investment properties and investment
properties under development were revalued on 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015 by Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent firm of surveyors, who have
among their staffs Members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, on a market value basis.
The management of the Group has discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

AREHRENERERTRENE
2 AFERE = RIEH DA E -

WEEHRNEBHINT
2,985,000 2,352,000
146,805 294,277
= 127,000
285,195 211,723
(127,000) -
3,290,000 2,985,000

BREMERERTFREVENRFE
HABERGEBRRRN [REME AT
B3R I0] TEARER ©

RZZE—RE=ZA=+—HILFEH
W EF—RRE_HzENLEEE -
TIARBRE=ZRNBALEDL -

AEEOREMERERTREME
RZE-—RF=ZA=+—HBEZZE
—hFE=A=t—HABILAEMT
SHBEMEBRRE(FE)BRAR (K
BETEFHEEBNEMBERE
B A E Y R B AN B A T
HELR) RMEEEME AXEE
BEERETHLFEREGEER NS
THERLGERR REEERREZ
FEERETT W



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R Bl R (48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LA TTEIR)
17. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 17. Bl (&)
(@)  (Continued) (@ (&)

The following table shows the significant unobservable
inputs used in the valuation model:

77 PR B e 1A 15 5% o 5 PR ) AT
B BE

Properties Valuation techniques Unobservable input Adopted rate/value
ES HER % TUBEYE ERMAZE EE
2016 2015
—EB-RE ZE—h%F
Investment properties
REME
— Data centres Income approach — Risk-adjusted discount rate 8% 6%
YEPL discounted cash flow analysis LB 8RR =
WAE—
WRASTENN Expected market rental growth 4% 4.5%
EHTSHSER
Expected occupancy rate 92%-100% 100%
BHLRE
Terminal capitalisation rate 5% 4.5%
RIEER(E
— Office premises Income approach — Term yield N/A 3%
PRAEME term and reversion approach  RHINER TEA
W& —
FHMNERZE Reversionary yield N/A 3.25%
EHEKEE TEA
Market rent ($/square feet/month) N/A 31.7
mHEs (T/ FHR/A) TER
Investment properties  Residual approach — Risk-adjusted discount rate N/A 6%
under development discounted cash flow analysis BB AR AR X TEA
RERPERENE FErEEE —
BERERENT Expected market rental growth N/A 45%
BHTSRER TEA
Expected stabilised occupancy rate N/A 100%
BHREHEE TEA
Terminal capitalisation rate N/A 4.5%
BILEA(EER TER
Expected monthly rental ($/square feet) N/A 190
BEHARGL/FAR) TEA
Estimated profit margin N/A 20%
fhEt A TEA
Costs to completion ($'000) N/A 221,558
BRIRA(FT) TEA

Wi m R A o 201516 2w E ()3



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

17. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

@

(Continued)

The fair value of investment properties — data centres is
determined on the basis of capitalisation of discounted cash
flow analysis by discounting a projected cash flow series
associated with the properties using risk-adjusted discount
rates. The valuation takes into account expected market
rental growth and occupancy rates of the properties. The
discount rates used have been adjusted for the quality and
location of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The
fair value measurement of investment properties — data
centres is positively correlated to the expected market rental
growth and the occupancy rate, and negatively correlated to
the risk-adjusted discount rate and terminal capitalisation
rate.

The fair value of investment properties — office premises is
determined on a market basis by capitalising net rental
income on a fully leased basis having regard to the current
passing rental income from existing tenancies and potential
future reversionary income at the market level. No allowance
have been made for vacancies or capital deductions of any
nature. the fair value measurement of investment properties
— office premises is positively correlated to the market rent
and negatively correlated to the term yield and reversionary
yield.

The fair value of investment properties under development is
determined using the residual method by estimating the fair
value of such properties as if they were completed in
accordance with the relevant development plan and then
deducting from that amount the estimated land premium,
estimated costs to complete the construction, financing
costs and a reasonable profit margin. The fair value
measurement of investment properties under development
is positively correlated to the expected monthly rental,
market rental growth and occupancy rate and negatively
correlated to the risk-adjusted discount rate, terminal
capitalisation rate, estimated profit margin and costs to
completion.

17. BIEHE (&)

@)
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(&)

BREWME — BIEF LA HETIRE
MABREREERMEONETE - BRI
704 LA 150 PR JeRL e 8 B i 3R = R 3R B 5%
SUEMEBN—RINBARERE -
HEZRIZENEFNEEMSES
BiEMHEE - ERAMRRERERHE
BHERENEZRMHARBFOE
ERBER - REWE — BEFLH
RFEFERBHTISHESIEE M
MERMKIEL - 2R b AR R K
RIEBEANMEREREL ©

REME — MRAEMEZAFETIR
BMRRAREREENMONET - A
[68 20 A LA 62 R 2 e 8 R B 3R R B3R B
ZEYFEHREN —RIEARSRE -
HEZEIZEVMENERTSEE
RN HEE - ERANRRREHE
ERARNENE R B AREPHE
ERBREER - REME — MIEWHE
MR EFEEBRTISHESEER
AR IELE - T B B 5 B RE 3R R
BB\ P B RRRLE

BRPREVEZAFERRSREER
TREBEFTRENEAHEMERE
BREZEMEZRERERASRT -
WHIRMBFHERT RN 2 LM E - 4
FHERTHIRA « BERAR SRS -
BRPREVENRFEFEREH
AR - m5ESIEE L HERKIEL -
HRRFAERRE  RIEEEAREE
AR R Rk TR R L ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

17. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(0)

The Group leases out a number of building facilities under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 5 to 20 years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment properties are
classified as investment properties.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

Within 1 year —FA
After 1 year but within 5 years —HFIRERFA
After 5 years AFE

The Group’s buildings held for own use, investment
properties and investment properties under development
are situated in Hong Kong and held under medium-term
leases.

The Group’s buildings held for own use, investment
properties and investment properties under development
were pledged against bank loans, details of which are set out
in note 23.

(0)

17. BIERE (&)

AEERBELEHELHALNETR
e ZEHE-—RVESHAE—+
FrUAREERORREESHY
5 S5 37 199 728 P 16R5K

RELLHERABEEMT @GR
BREVMEEERNMAENE Hen
BREEME -

AEERBETAIBBELEEENRAR
FEU ) SR EFRIBARRINT ¢

123,066 118,086
377,556 372,496
142,279 176,837
642,901 667,419

AEEBAZERME REVDER
BRPREVERAMNEE R IATH
HARA -

AEEBAZERME REDER
BHRPREVEEHFERABRGRT
B3 BREABHNMES -

R IRA TR o 2015/16 4E



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

18. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18. i & ¥ e
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—FHF
$'000 $'000
T F7T
Available-for-sale securities, quoted ARPERES  BREEIELT
but unlisted 12,809 14,170
The available-for-sale securities were pledged as security for the AIHEEFADEIBEAR T AEERTE
bank loans granted to the Group (note 23). REVEAR (B15#23) ©

19. GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 19, JEW M EZ P X THREH
CONTRACT WORK

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
$'000 $°000
Fx T+t
Gross amount due from customers for EBREFENIRESR
contract work
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits 7 4= H& #4955 A N2 FE 255 FR
less recognised losses BEREE 3,047,451 2,272,539
Less: Progress billings received and receivable i = = U & e Ui fE 3008 (3,028,636) (2,199,965)
18,815 72,574
Gross amount due to customers for ENEEFANIRESE
contract work
Progress billings received and receivable B R e IR 108,134 128,883
Less: Contract costs incurred plus recognised & : B 4 84 LIRK AN AN 2 e 525% A
profits less recognised losses BB HER R (90,842) (121,267)
17,292 7,616
All gross amounts due from/to customers for contract work are FraRY, TENEFPAH TRREREHN—
expected to be recovered/settled within one year. FERUREEE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FE WSO K B L i JE Wik JH

2016 2015
—B-X"F —TRF
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade receivables (note (i) FEUBRZX (B3 () 125,510 130,589
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (38) (46)
125,472 130,543

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% - T 318 & B fth fE U 3018
(note (i) (H1EE ) 17,628 16,119
Retentions receivable (note (ii) FEWRE T8 (K3 (i) 63,085 85,970
206,185 232,632

Note: Wit -

(i) Except for the amounts of $27,772,000 (2015: $30,326,000) as at 31
March 2016, which are expected to be recovered after one year, all
of the remaining balances are expected to be recovered within one
year.

(i) Except for the amounts of $42,181,000 (2015: $54,042,000) as at 31
March 2016, which are expected to be recovered after one year, all
of the remaining balances are expected to be recovered within one
year.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of

0]

(ii)

BR-_E-RNE=ZA=+—-—A0 A%
27,772,00070 (= Z — R4 : 30,326,000 7T )
HRBEER —FRWKEI - R TATE L
HIBHR —F R E o

BRZZE-XFZAZT+T-—BARH
42,181,000 7T (=% —F 4 : 54,042,000 7T)
M FIBTEHR —F R ESN - TR
IR —FRLm -

A& ERERT B M B RERZK (FOBR R

allowance for doubtful debts), based on due dates, is as follows: IR (BRI TS -
2016 2015
—E—REF —F—hF
$'000 $'000
T +T
Not yet due R HE 124,040 119,391
Under 1 month overdue BH—EAR 1,386 10,236
More than 1 month overdue and up to BEH—EAE=1EA
3 months overdue 33 908
More than 3 month overdue and up to BHI =B A =/~ A
6 months overdue 13 -
More than 6 month overdue and up to BENEAE—F
1 year overdue - 8
125,472 130,543

WA R AR o 201516 S ()



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AABTTIIR)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31 March 2016, the Group's trade receivables of $38,000 (2015:
$46,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers who were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Accordingly, the
Group has recognised impairment losses during the year in
relation to the amounts which are considered to be irrecoverable.
The movement of impairment during the year, including both
specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

20. WA Rk B A R WAk ()

RZF-—RF=ZA=1+—8 AEERH
38,0007T (ZZF — 14 : 46,0007T) 9 F& U5 R
REZEEREREERTRE - E5I2 R
BRI T PSS R A ﬁ'ﬁ
RERENE - HRES D BERKA]

Yml o Et, - $%@E%$¢Eﬁiﬁéﬁi%&ﬁﬁ
R EFIAAREARERR - FRREE
(BREER R ARERID) BT

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—hF

$'000 $'000

T3 T

At 1 April RmA—H 46 38
Impairment loss recognised (note 10(c)) ERERIBERE (f17 10(c) = 8
Reversal (note 10(c)) R (K73 10(c) (8) -
At 31 March W=A=+—H 38 46

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

I A B 2 A RIAR 1 2R E B B I AR R BV BR
EOMIT

2016 2015

—XE  —T-RF

$'000 $'000

Fx 7T

Neither past due nor impaired AR @A ARIRE 124,040 119,391

Less than 1 month past due —{E A M%) & 1,386 10,236

Over 1 month but less than 3 months past due —1& A Z= =& A N ZIH3 33 908

Over 3 months but less than 6 months past due =1 A &= /<& A R Z/E7 13 -
Over 6 months but less than 1 year past due ANEAZE—FREH -

. 1432 1,152
125,472 130,543
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20.

21.

Receivables which were neither past due nor impaired related to a
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables which were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record of trading
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH 21.

AND BANK BALANCES

B WA R sk 2 L fth I WA K L (42)
ARBHMKRENREEFTDSBR K
ST E B R AR

EEHERBENEREREEIEF (E
AEBEARINRHEBELE) BB - 2R
BELR ANEEERYEEAE(LELE
BRI 2HKRE - WEEERFBA
Phax SRR IR E R -

iﬁﬂ&ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%u&ﬁﬁ&ﬁ
T 50 ﬁ

2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—HEF
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Cash and bank balances He MIRITETT 134,353 113,052
Fixed deposits TEHRTF 38,828 64,494
173,181 177,546
Less: S
Pledged deposits (note (i) BEBFR (M EEN)) (47,552) (39,920)
Restricted deposits (note (ii)) SR GIIFF AT EE D)) (6,064) (6,064)
,,,,,,, (53,616) (45984)
Cash and bank balances as stated in the i*/*\ﬁﬁk?lﬁ%i’%ﬁfrﬁuziﬁ/i\&fﬁ’_
consolidated statement of financial position EEREARSRERMZES
and cash and cash equivalents as stated in &iﬁ 2ZEY
the consolidated cash flow statement 119,565 131,562

Note:

(i) The balances represent bank deposits pledged to secure banks
loans of the Group (note 23).

(i) The balances represent security deposits placed in a bank according
to the terms of the tenancy agreement entered into with a tenant by
the Group. The Group has no absolute right and control over the
bank balance as the usage of the bank balance is specifically
restricted by the tenant under the tenancy agreement. The Group
can deduct the balance upon the breach of the tenancy agreement
by the tenant. If the Group makes a deduction from the deposit, the
tenant shall make up the difference within 14 days of demand.

() ®SEFELERTEREER/ELEERITER
R (PRE23) ©

(i) ZEFEREBEAERE - MBS ZME
EHBRGEREFEARTHRES - AREA
RITH/EEZHE HE THEPORERERS
AR B SR T A7 0 S AR A N A IR
AEEARZHEPE RS 5 RN %
o MARERERPELNSR - ZE
FARRERN14BNHBERE -

temisEmE R AR o 201516 EHRE 109



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

22, B ARk B B A JE A 5k 1

2016 2015

—RNEF —E—hF

$'000 $'000

T 7T

Trade payables FERTER K 53,896 103,310

Other payables and accrued charges HEN OB R EETE A 101,954 64,894

Rental and other deposits (note (i) e RHEAMIZS (K32 0) 6,064 7.214

Receipts in advance TR AR X 3,527 3,232

Retentions payable (note (iii)) FEHR BB T8 (K15 (i) 54,354 58,949

219,795 237,599

Note: Bier

(i) Except as disclosed in note (i) and (i) below, all trade and other (i) B%TS( B 5 (i) Kz (i) FTas BB & 50 - A EAS

payables are expected to be settled within one year.

(if) Except for the amounts of $6,064,000 (2015: $6,064,000) as at 31
March 2016, which is expected to be settled after one year, all of the
remaining balances are expected to be settled within one year.

(i) Except for the amounts of $31,282,000 (2015: $32,347,000) as at 31
March 2016, which is expected to be settled after one year, all of the
remaining balances are expected to be settled within one year.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on due
dates, is as follows:

R H A FEA FIRTE B — F NS -

i) MZZE-—RE=ZA=+—HHREHN—F
% 5578 B FRIE6,064,0000 (= — A F -
6,064,000 7C) 5N - g2 NPT A EEATRHIIN —4F
mznlﬁ °©

(iii) R-TE— /\ﬁE A=+— E@}Eﬁﬂﬁ/\ F

% B ENTE 31,282,000 L (ZE — A F ¢
32,347 OOO7T:)9|\ ' %Tﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁé—
fFWJZI:UE °©

AEEREZHZ AT EREMERNERRD
WanF

2016 2015

—E—-RE —E—RF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Due within 1 month or on demand — (A AR B Hisk 12 E Sk 53,819 103,181
Due after 1 month but within 3 months — {8 A ==1EA Nz E 74 122
Due after 3 month but within 6 months = {8 A =58 A E) Ef = 4
Due after 6 months 7~ A 14 2 Hf 3 3
53,896 103,310
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTTIIR)

23. BANK LOANS 23. SATHEX

2016 2015
TE-XREF —E—hF
$'000 $'000
T T

Bank loans RITER
— Secured — HikE 1,064,331 1,067,506
— Unsecured — EIKA 5,924 7,347
1,070,255 1,074,853

At 31 March 2016, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

RZEB-—RF=ZA=+—H %

T FHAER

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Within 1 year and included in current liabilities —FRWH|ARE & E 125,546 147,880

After 1 year and included in non-current —FRWIAIFERBELE -

liabilities:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FE-FNR 534,186 143,276
After 2 years but within 5 years MEERFA 375,523 746,197
After 5 years hi& 35,000 37,500
BN 726973

1,070,255 1,074,853

B R AR AT o 201516 4EmE ] ] ]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIIR)

23. BANK LOANS (Continued)
(@ At 31 March 2016, the bank loans bear interest ranging from
1.73% 10 6.00% (2015: 2.24% t0 3.29%) per annum and are
secured by the following assets:

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment

REME

Pledged deposits BEEMER
Available-for-sale securities A ERES
Other assets Hm&EE

In addition, at 31 March 2016, the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by the following:

assignment of project proceeds, project insurance and
fire insurance policies for certain construction
contracts in relation to certain banking facilities
(including performance bonds) granted to the Group
with maximum amount of $512,977,000 (2015:
$263,670,000),

assignment of all rentals and all other moneys, sale
proceeds and insurance over the investment properties
of the Group in relation to certain bank loans granted
to the Group with carrying amount of $920,611,000
(2015: $882,953,000); and

share mortgages over the entire issued and paid-up
share capital of certain subsidiaries.

(b)  Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain balance sheet
ratios as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note

31(b).

23. @UTHEHR (&)

@)
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R-ZE—-XRFEF=A=+—8 #1778
HHERENF173EZ60E(=F
—HE:224FE329EFE) WA T
B EEER

3,290,000 2,985,000
125,095 -
47,552 39,920
12,809 14,170
39,527 58,871
3,514,983 3,097,961

AN RZE-RFE=ZA=+—8"
REBORITREE AT FIIE B 1EHE
&

— HEERLETEREANNEAEBMAER

H-HBBREARRE  SAE
BMERETRITRE(BREED

REFE) HEE 28 A
512,977,000t( — & — f F :
263,670,0007T) :

— HEERAKEREVMEBAENME

e MFTARE - HEMSHRE
ARIRE - SAEEERSE TR
T8 - HIRME{E A 920,611,000
(= T — F F : 882,953,000
) &

— HETHBRARNZHZ#HITR
B B H RORL A AR

AEEETRITREANAE T AR
BEABLENRGE  HWEREFR
RESBEBIEHOBRZ - WA
R EE R R - PR B BB o B X
BMBEREERE - AEETEMEEEE
SRERENER - AEEEERE
B R AE — S FBENHEE30) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24, fiEEmTH
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hHF
$'000 $°000
T Tt
Cash flow hedges: interest rate swaps MEMELEH : FXEH 8,530 3,835
Interest rate swaps F =42 B = 1,559
8,530 5,394
Represented by: B5R -
Current portion mENER D = 5,236
Non-current portion JEmENEB D 8,530 158
8,530 5,394
(@ The notional principal amounts of derivative financial (@ MRMEBPRREBEEMNTESRBRIAN
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period ZEASENT :
were as follows:
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—1F
$'000 $'000
:Fi T JT
Interest rate swaps =& 15 ER 606,500 851,000
() Derivative financial liabilities represent the amounts the b TELBREEREAEEMRREHFR
Group would pay if the positions were closed at the end of ETEBBYNORIE ~EFEERE
the reporting period. Derivative financial instruments that did TEFAHPEENITESRIAR
not qualify for hedge accounting and their corresponding HATENREZBSE N ERARER o
changes in fair values have been recognised in the profit or
loss.
(c) The loss on ineffective portion recognised in profit or loss © MEETREHPMELMERLHILR
that arise from cash flow hedges amounts to Nil (2015: BRANERACEBEEAZ(ZE—RF :
HK$44,000). 44,0007T) °

R AR A o 201516 4w ] 3



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 R B R (78 )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

25. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

@

On 21 January 2015, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
(the “Seller") pursuant to which the Group had conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Swift
Millions Limited, a company principally holding an office
premise in Hong Kong, from the Seller for a cash
consideration of $125,000,000. The transaction was
completed on 16 March 2015 and Swift Millions Limited
became a subsidiary of the Group accordingly.

The fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed were as follows:

Investment properties (note 17) WEME (Wt 17)
Deposits and other receivables e K H At FE W RRIE
Other payables H b FUR

Tax payable (note 11(c))
Deferred tax liabilities (note 11(c))

Net assets acquired
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 9)

Consideration on acquisition of a subsidiary BB B ARl (E
Satisfied by: SRR

Cash REe

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of (b)
the acquisition of a subsidiary:

Cash consideration paid BENRERE

Acquisition of the subsidiary has been accounted for using
the purchase method. A gain on a bargain purchase arises
from the excess of fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary over the cost of
acquisition. The total revenue of the acquired subsidiary for
the year ended 31 March 2015 was $4,047,000 which
contributed $163,000 to the revenue of the Group. Profit of
the acquired subsidiary for the year ended 31 March 2015
was $8,284,000. The profit attributable to the owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 included a profit
of $24,000 which related to the acquired subsidiary.

25. Wk B & 2 W

@)

PRI RLK (B aE 11(c)
EXERE (HE11()

Wi & EFE
B 2 e (A1 9)
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\_E-RF-A-+—B AKHEH
BEBARBE—2EAWMBEARRET
EF=FTERDIALBRSEERZ
B ARERERGEREDKE
ERARAFNEHMDHITRA - %
NAEEFAUNEENORLIEDE
RAE % 125,000,0007C © kR SR ZF
—hFE=ZA+RAEK BERERA
AIEMARAEEE —HBRF -

WENEERAENEBEBEZ AFET
REATE

127,000
1,308
(1,186)
(122)
(1,777)

125,223
(223)

125,000

125,000

WENBLARANReREFALRS

FEY

125,000

IR BT B 2 B AMBESE AR - BB IR
B WERE W BB AR AT ER
EERBENATEBBBERE-
WRENBAREHZ —_T—AF=A
=+ —HIEFEMBIKEA4047,000
L EER T AKEM K E A 163,000
T WKBHBAREBZE_ZT—AF
—AZt+—"BHLEEFEMRFAB
8,284,000t + H A 5 F 24,000 7T B #&
AR BEABGEE-ZS—R1F
—AZ+—HIEFEREFA -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

26. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: EIE

Ordinary shares of $0.01 HiREE0.017T
(2015: $0.01) each —F-RHF:

0.017T) H & Bk

ordinary shares, issued  ZER G BRITRHE :
and fully paid:

At 1 April REA—H

Shares issued under the scrip 1848 LABR L 8 31T

dividend scheme (note (1)

Betn (FFEE ()

Issuance of new shares under 1RIEATAREE1TEITHY

the bonus issues
(note (i), (i), (iv) and (v))

At 31 March

RS (i (1) ~ (i) ~
() % (v)

R=A=+—H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Note:

@

On 22 September 2014, the Company issued and allotted 712,058
shares at an issue price of $3.936 per share in respect of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 under the scrip dividend
scheme. Except for the entitlement to the said final dividend and
bonus shares issue (note (i), the 712,058 issued shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing shares.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 31 July 2014, bonus shares were
issued to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on 7 August 2014, the record date, on the
basis of one new share credited as fully paid for every ten shares
held.

On 22 September 2014, an amount of $400,000 standing to the
credit of the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
40,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.01 each which were allotted and
issued as fully paid to the shareholders who were entitled to those
bonus shares.

10,000,000

484,783

101,805

586,588

26. JBEA

100,000 10,000,000 100,000
4,848 400,000 4,000

= 712 7

1,018 84,071 841
5,866 484,783 4,848

EARFEAARERTET RS - I
FEEARABRRAG LER-—ENERER
B MAEBRMAORARBRTIEEMS
ZBRFHAL -

Hrat -
(i)

R-ZE—MFEAA-+=H  ZRATRE
LR ERE BT —N&=A
= +—HIEFEMNRPAKRBIZEMR3.936 7T
HZETT(E 31T AL 3 712,058 BEAR 17 © BR A
TEZ REARR B I AT IR 25 17 (B 5 (i) ) A9 7
SN 5% 712,058 R B TN B E RFRIRE
BOEMBE T EZEREHA -

REARRNR -_Z—OFLA=1T—B&
THRRBEAS LEBBMNERRER
R-ZE—mMENALH (RREAH) RFIA
NERRAME PR REZANR  BRERT
FA TR TR X — I ARRIIMESR
B FTR A7

R-Z-—WNFAA-—+ B BOEER
7% 81400,000 7T #9 4 B A 7 %12 40,000,000
BEREETTMEBA  ZEFMHEE
AR T3 K 1T T A IR AL AR
Ho

VB R A RAT o 2015/16 4F R HR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(i) Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 17 November 2014, bonus
shares were issued to shareholders whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 5 December 2014, the
record date, on the basis of one new share credited as fully paid for

every ten shares held.

On 18 December 2014, an amount of $440,712 standing to the credit
of the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
44,071,205 ordinary shares of $0.01 each which were allotted and
issued as fully paid to the shareholders who were entitled to those

bonus shares.

(iv)  Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 July 2015, bonus shares were
issued to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on 31 July 2015, the record date, on the
basis of one new share credited as fully paid for every ten shares

held.

On 12 August 2015, an amount of $484,783 standing to the credit of
the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
48,478,326 ordinary shares of $0.01 each which were allotted and
issued as fully paid to the shareholders who were entitled to those

bonus shares.

(v)  Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 17 November 2015, bonus
shares were issued to shareholders whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 8 December 2015, the
record date, on the basis of one new share credited as fully paid for

every ten shares held.

On 17 December 2015, an amount of $533,261 standing to the credit
of the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
53,326,158 ordinary shares of $0.01 each which were allotted and
issued as fully paid to the shareholders who were entitled to those

bonus shares.

26. A (&)
ERRC )

(iif)
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BREBEARBR-_ZT—NFE+—A+£H£
THREENAS ERBNETRIREE
R-Z—NE+-ARB (A BT
RNBIBRRAMAOBEERLAR  EEL
A TR A E R % — AR SIES
RAIFREAD ©

R-Z-—WMFE+-A+/\B - BOEER
A EA40,712 70 B #E BR A A SR 44,071,205
BEREEC TN EBA  ZFMEE
AR I8 K AT T A R AL AR Y AR
B

REARRR -_Z—AFEA-T=BH
THRRBFAS LBBNERAER
RoZE-—AFLA=+—RH(CHEBEH) A
SR RN RRR B MR ORI RAT R - B
REFE T IRIRN AT EIRE —IRARDIE
BRI

R-E-—RENA+T-B BROEERA
484,783 TL 1) #E R F3 1A 45 2 48,478,326 %
SREEC TTHETEE  ZEHRTLTE
BRI BCEE R BT T A R R AT AR AIARER -

BEARFTR-_Z—HF+—-—A+LER
THRRFIAS LEBMERRER
R-ZE—RAF+-AN\B(EBH) A
RRABBRRAMEOPRRERAR - BER
FIA T BB TR X — BRARIIES
RHFTRAD ©

R-ZE-—HF+-A+tBE BHOEERE
73 20533,261 7T H H#E BR A P SR 53,326,158
REREECOI TN E B  ZEHEE
A TR B K B AT T A R X AL Y AR
o
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27. RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The
natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to the provisions, if
any, of its memorandum and articles of association in
paying distributions or dividends to equity
shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4(d).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of the
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
A(f).

27.

AEEEERB RN A RS
B3k o AP RO R EIEE X B M

T

()

(ii)

(iii)

KRG #EE
B ERBFSESRAEMR
B ARAR A SRR D
IR B AR IBE A ERA
A LA R (B ) B A D
i B

BRIFEEEZ N DIRZBEE
RRARBBAISNREEES
hEEIER - BRITA B AR
10 ) (B i A () 4 2 R 2 A5 0 IR
LS

QP ERE
AVERBEERBENRESE
HR i H EE S QT ERN R
BRE - WREMEMD S
ATBUOREEIE

HPlEE

HrhRESRESREL HAA
i TARHENRFZEFHE
B MER D - A R RARIBI G
A 8 & A R FERR B R Ay

A E
REnRE -

VB R A RAT o 2015/16 4F R HR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

27. RESERVES (Continued) 27. it #)

At 1 April 2014 R-Z-MFEMNA—A 98,934 20,562 119,496
Profit and total comprehensive income NG E R k2 E

for the year - 47,258 47,258
Shares issued under the scrip BB EETHRG

dividend scheme (note 26(i) (Bt 26()) 2,796 - 2,796
Issuance of new shares under the RIBA R BT RITRR

bonus issues (note 26(ii) and (iii)) (32 26(1) % (i) (841) - (841)
Interim dividend declared and paidin -~ 2 &R kXN AREE R ER S

respect of the current year (note 15()) (K3t 15(3)) - (18,510) (18,510)
Final dividend approved in respect of  #L/EB F—FEH RIS

the previous year (note 15(b) (Bfz%15(0) - (18,400) (18,400)
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE-HF¥=A=+—-H 100,889 30,910 131,799
Profit and total comprehensive AEERAREEKE

income for the year = 82,094 82,094
Issuance of new shares under the IR R B TR TR TR

bonus issues (note 26(iv) and (v)) (Bt 26(1v) % (v)) (1,018) - (1,018)
Interim dividend declared and paidin -~ 2 &k kXN AREE H T EAR 2

respect of the current year (note 15@)) ~ (#15t 15(a)) - (21,330) (21,330)
Final dividend approved in respectof — #t/EB F—EEHRERE

the previous year (note 15(b)) (Bf:£15(0)) - (20,361) (20,361)
At 31 March 2016 R=-B-AE=A=+—-H 99,871 71,313 171,184
At 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves RZZFE—R"F=ZA=+—8" ' AQd
available for distribution to owners of the Company, as AR T ARAREA AN FEERRE
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the (FRIBEFASEE RN alE RN 7] 48 4%
Cayman Islands and the Company’'s memorandum and ZRAMRMAIEE) A171,184,000
articles of association, was $171,184,000 (2015: TT(ZZE—FHF :131,799,0007T) °

$131,799,000).
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28. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

Non-current assets

Property, plants and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries

Loan to a subsidiary

Current assets

Loan to a subsidiary

Prepayment and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Other payables

Bank loan

Loan from a subsidiary

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank loan
Loan from a subsidiary

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 2

June 2016

Chan Hung Ming
R #L BA
Director
BE

FEEEE

WE -~ BB R&RE
REME A
ERTHIERA]

RBEE
BHTHBAT
T i ee
Re REITET

REBAE
Hofth A R
RITER
NI =B

RENEEFE
REERRBRE

e Y
RITER
g} TR

BEFRE
PR A R 1
P

G4

28. Mo wl B IR D%

110

46,458

46,568

2,500
218,590
21,539

242,629

61,193
1,011
2,500

64,704
177,925

224,493

2,443
45,000

47,443

177,050

26
27(b)

5,866
171,184

177,050

s

%
Lau Chi Wah
g|EE

Director
o

VB R A RAT o 2015/16 4F R HR

252,466
2,084

254,550

63,437
1,011
2,500

66,948
187,602

187,602

3,455
47,500

50,955

136,647

4,848
131,799

136,647

BExenr T R"ERA-BHERRET
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)
29. SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

29. Fi)E A H
UTHRABIESAFEAEENELS - &
ENBBEZHBRARNFE - BREEME

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

S AR BRI B o

stated.
Proportion of ownership interest
EEEERLA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by
Name of subsidiary and business paid-up capital interest Company a subsidiary Principal activity
ERTREHRE
WEARERE BYREEHH REpy AEEEERER HAMARE HBHBAREE TEXEE
Grand Tech Construction Hong Kong
Company Limited $5,000,000 100% - 100% Construction
EEREERAT 6 e
Wellford Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong $100 100% - 100% Property investment
BEEXERNRA Bk NERE
Winning Tech Limited Hong Kong $1 100% - 100% Property
development and
investment
BEIBRAR BE MELRRRE
Top Regent Development Hong Kong
Limited $1 100% - 100% Property holding
REREERAT 6 NERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. & A B A FE

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to fund its construction business, property development and
investment projects, provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between enhancement of
shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's current ratio (defined as current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.07 times (31 March 2015:
1.19 times). The Group's gearing ratio (defined as total interest-
bearing borrowings divided by shareholders’ equity) was
approximately 43.3% (31 March 2015: approximately 50.7%).

AEBEREANTERBRARERNEER
BIREMRET  URAEEMRBERBUR
MEBRMRERBRTES  ABRRKLHE
i ) 2 4 B B 10 o e M A B A R R £
B E RIS LOBE B AR A ©

REETEE N E Ras REEREARRE
VA 42 /= A 3R (2] 3 (7] BE HF BE 80 = A fE 3R0K
) EEREE AR KA I 5L S (R IR 2 [
RS  YREKERNNE(CARER
RiE -

AN B SR EAEARIP B 2 BN X AT SR e
INEE AR TE PR ©

N-E—RNFZA=Z+—H ' AEBNRH
E(RBEERRDARZ) B107E(ZE
—RAEFZA=Z+—8:1191F) - AEEH
EARBELEGHEERAERIREER) D
B3%R(ZFE—RAF=ZA=Z+—8: 4
50.7%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S R B R (A5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, financial derivative instruments and trade and
other receivables. The Group maintains a defined credit
policy and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound credit
ratings and the Group has exposure limit to any single
financial institution. Transactions involving derivative
financial instruments are with counterparties of sound credit
standing. Given their high credit ratings, management does
not expect any of these financial institutions and
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations.

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment of
the potential customers is carried out as part of the
acceptance procedures for the new contracts.

Regular review and follow-up actions are carried out on
overdue amounts of trade receivables from customers which
enable management to assess their recoverability and to
minimise the exposure to credit risk. Trade receivables are
due within 0-30 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of rental income from leasing properties, rental
deposits are held to cover potential exposure to credit risk.
An ageing analysis of the receivables is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit
risk associated with these receivables. Adequate impairment
losses have been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

31.

S B A P % ik TR P

AEEEENEE  RBESRNEER T
EASEIEXBBRETEL - AKE@Y
%L R A N AN B R B IR % AR TR AR
B TSR E R BR MR T o

AEENEERREZRBRITFR
DT 2 B T A DA B e U AR R K HL Ath B
WkIR - AL BRI A RN EERER -

YHEEREZEEERR

Re HERREEFRBRNM 5
18 T AN S B St X AT 8 Bl B 7% 4 18 P
EENEBRER - FRITESRTE
MRZXZREARIFEEFFNEFTH
BT ERREAESEENL &
BERMENZEMERERS T
TeEEETHEE -

I EEAHE - HBEERP MG
TR BEMEFN—&D

AEEHEREFPNE S EWHIER
IS BT T e IR EUR A HE ) -
8BS AR E AT @ 1 K i 1E
ERREEREKRT - B 5HEKHIEA
BRZEAHETE=THRNIH - —
s > AEEAEEREFPREMHE
o

AREEMEHENESWAMS - K
SESFHERSUBNEENEE
[z o AN 52 [ TE A S R SRR B B
ROMAIEHTINEE UK RZE
EUWFEARNEMNEERREES
EKF o fEEH A E e B S 5T R
RHARREREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

S0 R B R (42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LABTHIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers. In view of
their credit standing, good payment record and long
established relationships with the Group, management does
not consider the Group's credit risk to be significant. At the
end of the reporting period, 38% and 79% (2015: 19% and
96%) of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as set
out in note 33, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 33.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 20.

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the raising of loans to
cover the expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the Company'’s board of directors. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed funding lines from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

31. o5 U BR A PR K il T H P (8)

RBEHR A EBLERFEFEE
AEEEFRARK - EREEEFTHR
RIS Mtk AE@mE TR
iR EREERAASEEENEE
EIFEKN - RIBEHR - EBURE
HERER D RIE38% N T79% (—E—h
F 9% K 9%%) BERAEBHZAR
FRAREFFE -

B Pl S 33 P 8 AN = (B 4F O B IS 4 R
Sh - REEAEBEHESFEARE AR
EERBMEAEMBER - RREH
R RREFVBHEFRMEENRSE
B E B M 33 ER -

A B 7 5= B A FE Uk BR 3R H A E U R
HEAEERBNE TS FES
AMIEE20 ©

AEEETEMBRABEREAREGN
ReER BRESEFARERY
ReFR  WEHARBEFTEIE -
AEENBRERERTERERE 7 LTAH
MBESTEUANEETERREN
B NHEREEREARDHE R
EXEVHEBRTRENEAHRE
THE BNEEHMLEHNRHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETTIIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31. MA¥RBGEA R4 T HAVE (&)

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RENE LR ()

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

TRHFIAREZ B A EN
RBTAOHMER - b HREA D
RERRSNE (RERAHFEMD
BT - AR S AR HRTFIE)
SHEOTBAH) RAKBTHERA

rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the FHEEHEMED :
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
Carrying
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow amount
ENARBRER REE
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1yearor less than lessthan  More than
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—ER —-FHE MENE
REX ERMEUAR  BEEHUR RENE &gt
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
At 31 March 2016 RZB-RE=A=1+-H
Bank loans FIER 152,958 544,109 395,684 41,113 1,133,864 1,070,255
Trade payables, other R - EtEER
payables and accrued et ER
charges 155,850 - - - 155,850 155,850
Retentions payable EffRES 23,072 8,207 23,075 - 54,354 54,354
331,880 552,316 418,759 41,113 1,344,068 1,280,459
Derivative settled net: REFBEEMTAETR
Interest rate swap FEEHEN 6,906 6,850 15,653 - 29,409 8,530
At 31 March 2015 R-B-E5=f=1-H
Bank loans FAER 173,683 165,772 761,649 4453 1,145,640 1,074,853
Trade payables, other EREZ  AfFER
payables and accrued [EstBH
charges 168,204 - - - 168,204 168,204
Retentions payable EffRES 26,602 28,485 3862 - 58,949 58,949
368,489 194,257 765,511 44,536 1,372,793 1,302,006
Derivative settled net: BERREMITETA:
Interest rate swap ESEEIEN 5220 808 702 - 6,770 5394
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact
of rates changes on interest-bearing borrowings which
predominantly bear floating interest rates. The Group
monitors closely its interest rate exposure and the level of
fixed rate and floating rate borrowing and considers hedging
interest rate exposure should the need arise. The Group'’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out
in (i) below.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

() Hedging

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate mix
of fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with the
Group’s policy. At 31 March 2016, the Group had
interest rate swaps with a notional contract amount of
$606,500,000 (2015: $651,000,000), which it has
designated as cash flow hedges of the interest rate risk
inherent in its variable rate bank borrowings. At 31
March 2016, the Group did not have any interest rate
swaps (2015: notional contract amount of
$200,000,000) which were not designated as cash flow
hedging instruments.

The swaps mature over the next four years and have
fixed swap rates ranging from 0.89% to 1.80% (2015:
0.89% to 1.97%). The net fair value of swaps entered
into by the Group at 31 March 2016 was $8,530,000
(2015: $5,394,000). These amounts are recognised as
derivative financial instruments (note 24).

31. B4 B A BE e i ik T H O P AE ()

AEEEGEERNFRESHTE
ERAMERRE  MZEFEERER
BRIHNEGFE - AEEEYEEE
AT TED e 1) 1) % L e DA R [ 3 ) <R R 5%
B A REREKFE - AR REEZE
ETM RS - EIREEEN
REBE MR EREN T ()

A& BT BB R F R R ERGRR
BTSRRI E 234 5% o

(i)

ANEBE DT AB T EAHER M R
BHALY  UEBFAANEER
FHEE BT MZEF R R RA
B -R_E—RE=ZA=+—
B AEEBEEEANSER
606,500,0007C( — & — F 4 :
651,000,0007C ) B F| =& #2 H7 &
4 IBEBEFEBHFRBITHER
REFRER IR S RE L
R-E—RE=A=+—H0 XK
SEEFEF(ZTE—RF: EE
A #94 %8 200,000,000 7T ) {E 1A 3E
BEARS RSP TANF X
BHEAH -

HHE R ARRUFREE -
@& E =B XN FT08EZE
180E(ZE—RF :089EF
1978) e KEBR T —RF
— A=+ BB AFE
SFEA 58,530,000 C( — T —FH4F ¢
5,394,0007T)  ZEHEEER A
PTESmM T A (FIzE24) -
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(ABTTIIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings (as defined above) at the
end of the reporting period, after taking into account
the effect of interest rate swaps designated as cash
flow hedging instruments (see (i) above).

Net fixed rate borrowings: EEREERRE
Bank loans RITER

Variable rate borrowings: SBFRES
Bank loans RITER

Total net borrowings BETEE

Bl MR AR R B
FENAIN

Net fixed rate borrowings as a
percentage of total net borrowings

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation
and total equity by approximately $3,829,000 (2015:
$3,548,000), in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis for the year 2015.

31. [ LR A PR K il T H AP ()

(i) FIEBER
TERAVFRETRRAEREY
HITAMMNREHOTER K
SEERHEHROGERFECE
BEREXMARFR(E LX
M) °

3.39 611,708 368 649,920
3.70 458,547 315 424,933
1,070,255 1,074,853
52.16% 6047%

(i) BBE D HT

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

R-ZE—RF=A=+—8 14
SRR T E A 100 B E
o M EMEsgis g
REE BT E R T & 48R = iR
A /1800 493,829,000 ( = &
— 4 :3,548,0007T) + 1k JY H
PAFIREEREE F SR TR o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIIR)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency
risk as substantially all of the Group's transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technigue as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

31. o5 U BR A PR K il T H P (8)

AEEY BEHEEEAINEELR - AR
SEMBRED R B AETTHE °

(i) BIAFEAENEHEERER

RNFEER
TREVAEESBM T ARHS
RIS EEREEFENDTF
B WERESMIEREELE
135 AFEEFENEERS A=
HAAFEER - R FEFESER
Th 2 R E T AT &k /0 ] &
RIEFEBESFENT ¢

F—AMGE: EERSE -RBE
FHEMNRTE - AR EEHE
ARMIZEHEREERRBERE

F_RMEE  ERE -RBURR
ENAFE  ITFEE RS
ABRBBEIARERATABR
MEZRHE - TABRBIEIIE
EXBGETISEMNEIE

FZAME: ERTATEENE
EHBFENATE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AABTTIIR)

(i)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES  31. A% B 45 BE & 4 b T H 2 P4 (2)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (Continued) (e) AFEF & (&)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BAFEFTENEHEEREE
value (Continued) (&
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANFEZR(E)
Fair value at
31 March Fair value measurement as at
2016 31 March 2016 categorised into
R-ZB—XRE
=A=+—H R-ZEBE—RE=ZA=+—HW
AT E AR EFEIES
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—R ER F=R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T F Fr Fr
Assets =
Available-for-sale A ER S
securities 12,809 - 12,809 -
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial ~ #744$®IT A
instruments
— Interest rate swaps — F&R{EHIA 4 8,530 - 8,530 -
Fair value at
31 March Fair value measurement as at
2015 31 March 2015 categorised into
R-_ZE—H
—A=+—H RZE—RAF=A=+—HH
BAFE NHEFEDEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—1 FE-) F=H
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Tt Tt +T Tt
Assets EE
Available-for-sale AR EES
securities 14,170 - 14,170 -
Liabilities afE
Derivative financial PTESMTA
instruments
— Interest rate swaps  — FRIEHIA 49 5,394 - 5,394 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31.

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occurred.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of available-for-sale securities is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period without any deduction for transaction costs.

The fair values of interest rate swap is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive or pay to
terminate the swap at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account current interest rates and the
current credit worthiness of the swap counterparties.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

(ii)

32. COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2016 not provided
for in the Group's financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for
Authorised but not contracted for

BRI4
EHUEERETH

The capital commitments solely related to development
expenditure for a data centre building.

31. B4 B A BE e i ik T H O P AE ()

32. AR
R=

REH

(i)

(ii)

BAFHENENTHEERER
(%)

DNFEER (E)
HE_Z—RERZT—RF=
A=+—HLEFE B—HEE
ZHRo M EIEER . RE
BB AREL - AEEK
RABREREHRLATFEER
B2 B e o

BB FEEAAIEERM
R &5

AR ERFN A FETIARE
HIRH M IS RIE QKE - BAH
R F AN

MBI R BT RIRTT
MEREHZHHTFERNEE
AR ARBEERREHRK
B X AR L2z At e
28 o

WHZERFEFTENEHBTAN
NFE
AEENARNTN S BT EIEK
A HEK AT E N REEREE
R-E—RNER—_FE—RHE=R
—t+t—BNAFETESERE
=,

A=At BRBIRARE
P EE B RO ARRENT

11,674 26,043
64,229 195,515
75,903 221,558

BARAEERBIEP ORNBNEREAR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LA TTHIR)

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2016, the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of performance bonds to guarantee for the due and proper
performance of the obligations undertaken by one of the Group’s
subsidiaries amounting to HK$132,977,000 (2015: HK$103,670,000).

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in this financial statement, the Group had the
following material related party transactions:

33.

34.

A BUE

MN-ZE—RE=ZA=1+—08 ARQBInEH
ERAEBMEP —RMBARIBITAA#E
FmE LB ORENSAEE A 132,977,000
JT(=ZZ—FRF :103,670,0007T) °

KB T5 2 5

() BAHBHREEMIBAAERNZS
Rk gpoh - AL MET L LA T E AR
ETE

Rental paid to related companies: T ARNES
— Perfect Top Development — Perfect Top Development
Limited (“Perfect Top”) Limited ([ Perfect Top ) 420 888
— Gain Glory Development — Gain Glory Development
Limited (“Gain Glory") Limited ([ Gain Glory]) 232 492
652 1,380

(i)  Rental expenses paid were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business. These transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(i) On 17 September 2015, pursuant to the terms of the
lease agreements, the Group served a notice to Perfect
Top and Gain Glory to terminate the lease agreements
with effect from 21 September 2015. Other than the
rental payable up to 20 September 2015, neither party
is required to pay any penalty or compensation to the
other party in respect of the termination of the lease
agreements.

Mr. Chan Hung Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, being
directors of the Company, are directors and ultimate
beneficial owners of Perfect Top and Gain Glory.

() XNWEZERRB-RERK
o YRAREEBORE R —
REBBREPET - REXHHE
B ETRANE1UAZER ERRFE

(i) R-T-—RAFAA+EH  RE
HEBZNER XEER

Perfect Top&Gam Glory# H 8
—E-RAFAA-t+—HEBLL
HEWZ BREZ-_Z—A2Fh
ﬂ “+HIENESI  BEETH

FARKIERERZEmMAS—H
SR SRR B (E -

RAAEERBTEREEZAR

BINES + % J1 A& Perfect Top &
GainGloryMEE M A Em ik
BA -
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36.

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. HRKBBH RS (&)

(Continued)

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel, including by FEEBAENFHN(RIECNEZESH
amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note 13 and SH)RWFRBRE METRaH
certain of the highest paid employees and senior B B Km0 B TR I M B B B BA B 5
management as disclosed in note 14, is as follow: 1ABFTEIT -

2016 2015
—®-XE -T-HA
$'000 $°000
Fx T
Short-term employee benefits EHES R 11,255 11,065
Post-employment benefits BEBR A2 A 126 123
11,381 11,188
35. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING  35. JEFHE M5 IR ZE FIH

PERIOD

(@)  After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed (@ MRWMEHRE FEEHRERAR
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 15(a). B o E—EFBERMITE 15@) P EE o

()  On 31 May 2016, a subsidiary of the Group has successfully b)) RZE—R"FREA=1+—8 ~5£H
tendered for a land situated at Tsing Yi Town Lot No. 190, Sai H B ARIA938.88H & L2 M E
Shan Road, Tsing Yi, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Land") N BEBBRFUREENATK
from the Hong Kong Government on a 50-year land grant at 411 5 T R T M ER 85 190 5% #Y) R
a premium of $938.88 million. A deposit of $25.0 million, paid ([ ]) - #LFEEIAR505 - BERZ
at the time when the tender of the Land was submitted on - RNFRAZTEHSHEHZ I HIT
27 May 2016, has been applied as part payment of the ERNT25BE T2 2B AEXN
premium, the balance of which will be paid on or before 27 HWEZ D BREERZZE—RFN
June 2016. A+ +tBszf =T °
The premium is financed by the Group's internal resources HOB DA 52 [ 0 3B & IR AN ER 17 18 B
and bank borrowings. o
Details of the acquisition of the Land were set out in the BRNEZI 2 FBEHERNER
Company's announcement dated 31 May 2016. AI-E—XNFERA=1T—"BRNQMHF -

IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING 36. H¥EBEA H) B AP A T

COMPANY

At 31 March 2016, the directors consider the immediate parent RZE—RF=-A=+—H EFRAE XK

and ultimate holding company of the Group to be Chan HM SEMNEES AR RERIERARANEE

Company Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. This entity B Z 8% B 7 fff 5X 37 &9 Chan HM Company

does not produce financial statements available for public use. Limited - 2 BRI BERERNREAOTH

Wk o
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. MABHEMB

37.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 2 June 2016.

RUBHRRGCEEFGN _T—R"FRAZH
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AL E R YR E R

The particular of the Group's investment properties and buildings held ZRNEBERIEEMEL B RWEZZFBWOT ¢
for own use are as follows:

Location Use Tenure
b 25 JZE=S FHH

Investment properties
REY*

iTech Tower Data centre Medium-term lease
HHRF D HrERFR AY
No. 28 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan
New Territories, Hong Kong
BEHAR
N

=

A %1 28 5%

iTech Tower 2 Data centre Medium-term lease
HARF 0 R HEATE A9

No. 56 Ta Chuen Ping Street

Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong

BEHR

2R

FTRESTHAT 56 5%

Buildings held for own use
BRAY#*

19/F, No. 39 Chatham Road South, Office premises Medium-term lease

Kowloon, Hong Kong WAEYE FRHATE A9
BBNERR BRI 19E
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